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ABOUT PPIS

PPIS is a non-profit Muslim women social service organisation dedicated to working with women
of all ages in carrying out their multiple roles in society. Founded in 1952, the organisation runs
two core community services, namely Social Services and Early Childhood Education (ECE) Services.
Altogether, there are five social service centres, two student care centres and six ECE centres,
working together to provide a quality and holistic support as well as developmental programmes for
women and their families.

VISION

To be women who catalyse changes in Muslim women for the betterment of families, community
and society.

MISSION

To empower Muslim women with skills, knowledge and opportunities through quality programmes
and services to enhance their multiple roles in life.

CORPORATE VALUES – SACRED
Sincere in the services that we provide
Pro-Active in attending to the needs of the community
Compassionate in our actions
Reliable in service delivery
Effective and efficient in executing the services
‘ Dakwah’ inviting all that is good, enjoining what is right and forbidding what is wrong

Based on the values of SACRED, PPIS is committed in its efforts to catalyse and develop positive
changes in the lives of disadvantaged and underrepresented Muslim women and their dependents
to build sustainable families that are socially and economically independent.

LOGO

Lighting Lives, represented by a flame, guides the organization’s leap
forward towards achieving success for every woman, family and the
community it serves.

STRATEGIC ETHOS

For every woman, family, individual and the community it serves, PPIS hopes to cultivate these
virtues of success:
Visionary – Farsightedness in the pursuit of success
Ihsan - Compassion and Benevolence towards oneself and others
Resilience – Willpower to rise against all adversities
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President’s Foreword
Alhamdulillah, FY 2012-2013 has proven to be another
year of highlights for PPIS, the only Malay/Muslim women
charity organisation with an approved IPC (Institutions of
a Public Character) status accredited by Commissioner of
Charities.
On 27 June 2012, we celebrated our 60th Anniversary with
the community, donors, beneficiaries, volunteers and staff,
during which we renewed our commitments to serve the
community better by riding on Information Technology
(IT) and being a community-oriented organisation. We
continued to focus on IT capability to improve efficiency
and productivity. This shows how PPIS places an importance
on increasing staff competencies in order to realise their
potential and maximising their skills.
In the areas of social services, PPIS aspires to share our
expertise in helping Malay/Muslim families in various situations and stages in life with other social
service providers. We will continue to expand our training and consultancy services to contribute
towards capacity building in the social service sector. Besides training and consultancy, we also
embark on research to share our findings with the community. Vista Sakinah, our centre for remarried
couples and step families, conducted a research on remarried couples who attended our marriage
preparation courses from 2009 to 2010 to find out the status of their marriage. We found that about
90% of the marriages are still intact by 2nd - and 3rd year of marriage. The experience of keeping
in touch helps the centre to remain connected with past participants thereby facilitating PPIS Vista
Sakinah as the ‘turn to’ resource should they need help with their marriages. The research findings
and methodology was presented at CLF Convention 2012 where other social services experts and
community leaders were present.
In the areas of early childhood education, PPIS has taken over the full management of Junior Network
from our joint venture partner (Mendaki Sense) and renamed the centre to PPIS Child Development
Centre – Jurong. The centre has since gone through several changes to align its practices with other
PPIS Early Childhood Education centres. With a dedicated team of staff, the adjustments that took
place went smoothly.
I am confident that the Board and staff in PPIS will continue to drive the Association to grow in
strength and to become a trusted community partner. Hence I would like to extend the organisation’s
warmest appreciation to all our dedicated Board of Directors and Staff for their services and sacrifices
and our heartfelt gratitude to our donors and partners who have steadfastly supported PPIS in our
service to the community.
Lastly, I wish PPIS will continue to sustain its growth and remain relevant in the years ahead,
Insya’Allah.

Sapiah Molla
President

2

ar|fy|12|13

CEO’s Message
PPIS has grown from year to year and it is, with much
gratefulness to the Almighty, we have crossed the $10
million mark for the first time this year, through the
strong support from the Government and its agencies,
corporate and philanthropists as well as public donations.
As the famous saying goes, “With great power, comes great
responsibility”.
In taking on this great responsibility, PPIS has voluntarily
engaged an external auditor, Ernst & Young, to conduct
a corporate governance and internal controls review of
our organisation in December 2012. The result has been
compiled and presented to the Board and Management in
March 2013. We are confident that with better policies and
procedures in place, we would be able to serve better our
people and the society at large.
We have seen, in our engagement of our people, new target areas through, for instance, our FSC
East’s Beach Combing project, a 6 month journey to reach out to families and individuals living in
tents on the beach. This saw us providing assistance to more than 10 families and individuals. We
also reached out to MediaCorp Suria’s audience by collaborating with MSF to ensure appropriate
content and public messaging for the 3 times award winner Malay drama at Pesta Perdana 2013,
“Anakku Sayang”.
PPIS is always committed in transforming lives through our constant engagement with the needy
and poor, constant motivation to the single parents and children, constant development of our
women and families. The core team of management as well as front and back-end staff who work
relentlessly and with commitment to make changes to other people’s lives have made PPIS what it
is today.
Although we faced challenges on several fronts such as escalating wage costs and staff competencies
to meet the job functions’ requirements, we will continue to strive and sustain ourselves in the long
run through improvements of our business operations as well as development of our systems and
procedures in meeting up professional standards.
We hope to see a better living in the future together.
Thank you.

Maznah Masop
Chief Executive Officer
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PPIS BOARD MEMBERS 2012

Sapiah Molla
President

Kamariah Adnan
Vice President

Fatimah Azimullah
Advisor

Faridah Tay Abdullah
Honorary Treasurer

Nur Aadila Teo
Asst Honorary Treasurer

Dahliyah Hamid
Honorary Secretary

Rahayu Mahzam
Asst Honorary Secretary

Dr Noorul Fatha As’Art
Board Member

Siti Habibah Siraj
Board Member

Maslina Malik
Board Member
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Dr Bibi Jan Mohd Ayyub Rahayu Mohamad
Board Member
Board Member

Hazlina Abdul Halim
Board Member

Nur Amalina Abdul Gani
Board Member

Salina Samion
Board Member

Masmunah Abdullah
Board Member
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MINUTES OF 41st ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Minutes of the 41st Annual General Meeting of PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA (PPIS) held
on Saturday, 22nd September 2012, at 10.00 am, at OnePeople.SG, Singapore.

ATTENDANCE
151 participants attended the 41st Annual General Meeting of PPIS.

AGENDA
1.

President’s Address

2.

Confirmation of Minutes of 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM)

3.

Adoption of the annual report for the period April 2011 to March 2012

4.

Adoption of the Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2012

5.

Appointment of Auditors

6.

Proposed Amendments to the Constitution

7.

Appointment of Trustees

8.

Adoption of the Resolutions on the proposed amendments to the Constitution

9.

Election of Board members for the term 2012-2014

10.

Any other matters

PROCEEDINGS
1. PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS
1.1 President Sapiah Molla opened the session to welcome the members to the 41st Annual
General Meeting of PPIS. She confirmed that the quorum had been achieved and that the
agenda for the meeting could proceed as planned.
1.2 Referring to the last AGM Meeting Minutes, President Sapiah recalled PPIS’ achievements
which included the opening of 3 new centres – PPIS Vista Sakinah, PPIS Family Service Centre
East and Bedok Reservoir Child Care Centre – which would total to 14 centres under PPIS’
ambit as at 2011. These and other achievements have led PPIS to be recognised as one of the
leading social service providers in the Malay/Muslim community.
1.3 President shared that in the recent Financial Year ending 31 Mar 2012, the focus had been
on consolidating PPIS’ internal strengths. Subsequently there has been a strong emphasis on
developing our capabilities and improving our processes. These included:
i.
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The establishment of a professional development unit under the Early Childhood
Education Division. President remarked that PPIS is ahead of its time in initiating
this effort in light of the recent changes to the ECE sector that will be addressing the
capabilities and standards of early childhood education.

ii.

The use of scorecards and technological computations for the newly established Family
Economic Sustainability Programme was an innovation in social service. This use of
technology has allowed for us to expedite the learning of our new social workers as well
as standardise the practises of our more senior social workers. With this standardised
framework, PPIS hopes to be able to develop further the capabilities of our social service
division.

iii.

The harmonisation of finance and human resource functions across centres and
centralisation to PPIS HQ since 2008 has facilitated the consolidation of internal controls
and processes in these areas. PPIS has managed to secure partial VCF Funding to conduct
an internal audit of finance and HR processes and controls. Ernst and Young had been
appointed to provide the service. The outcome of the internal audit will lead to improved
processes that will help PPIS to function as an efficient and effective organisation.

2. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE 40th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
2.1 As there was no other amendment or clarification to the minutes of the 40th Annual General
Meeting, Siti Zainon Hassan proposed and Siti Habibah Siraj seconded the confirmation of the
minutes.

3. ADOPTION OF ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2011 TO MARCH 2012
3.1 CEO Maznah Masop went through PPIS’ Annual Report for FY 2011-2012, and highlighted the
following developments:
i.

For FY11-12, the works of Corp Comms were specially targeted towards networking and
maximising on publicity. The department increased press work efforts to garner more
publicity and strengthen their engagement with corporate donors in order to increase
support towards PPIS’ cause.

ii.

Resource Development (RD) focused on engaging corporate donors to adopt PPIS for
their CSR efforts.

iii.

The Professional Development (RD) unit was expanded to include professional
development for ECE through the engagement of a PD manager for the division.

iv.

Training and Consultancy unit performed very well having surpassed their targeted
revenue by 16% by achieving more than $100,000 in income in its first year of operations.

v.

The two Family Service Centres East and West were now able to cater to the Malay/
Muslim community from across the entire island, thereby going beyond their initial
service boundaries.

vi.

The Student Care Centres (SCCs) at Bedok Reservoir and Jurong have seen an increase in
enrolment such that in the last FY, they almost reached full capacity. The two SCCs were
noted to cater to the needs of low income families as 60% of their clients come from
needy families.
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vii.

As-Salaam PPIS was still going strong with encouraging and positive feedback received
from clients in their casework service. Inspirasi PPIS was strengthening their core programmes to address the diverse needs and changing profiles of their young couples that
included remarriage and cross-cultural marriage concerns. PPIS Vista Sakinah had embarked on a new area of service for the community with the formation of Fitrah Enrichment service to strengthen and support stepfamilies.

viii.

PPIS acquired the Junior Network Child Development Centre (currently known as Jurong
Child Development Centre [JRC]) in Jan 2012 from Yayasan Mendaki.

3.2 As there were no further questions or amendments to the Report, President invited members
to receive and adopt the Annual Report for 2011 – 2012. The Annual Report was received and
proposed for adoption by Nor Ain Saleha Abdul Hamid and seconded by Hawa Md Yusof.

4. ADOPTION OF THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 MARCH 2012
4.1 Hon Treasurer Kamariah Adnan went through the accounts for the year ending 31 March
2012. She highlighted the following matters:
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FY 20112012
8,585,209

Variance

Revenue

FY 20102011
7,503,508

Expenses

6,562,448

7,780,994

1,218,546

Surplus

941,060

804,215

(136,845)

1,081,701

i.

Income increased by 14.4% due to the overall increase of government and MMCDF
funding of the social service centres. There was also an increase in income from Training
and Consultancy unit.

ii.

Expenses increased by 18.6% due to higher manpower cost and implementation of ICT
systems.

iii.

Thus the overall surplus dropped by 14.5%.

iv.

An overpayment of $57,154 was made to the contractor that did renovations for FSC
East. This overpayment was discovered during the financial audit. PPIS had contacted
the contractor to return the amounts but the latter has yet to make any restitution. Consequently, PPIS will be commencing legal proceedings against the contractor.

v.

Ernst and Young had been appointed to conduct an internal audit of financial controls
and processes in line with a review of corporate governance as highlighted in item 1.3.iii
above.
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4.2 Ms Siti Zainon enquired whether the amount of $57, I54 was the result of several over payments
or just one payment. President explained that the double payment was on one payment only.
She further explained that investigations show lapses in check and control as well as lack of
competency on behalf of the staff concerned. Appropriate actions will be taken to address this
matter.
Other than this, President assured that the rest of the accounts are in order.
4.3 Ms Manijeh Namazie requested for the contractor’s name to be publicised so that the
organisation is aware of them in future contracts. President agreed that this will be done if
appropriate after the case is concluded.
4.4 With no further questions, President invited the meeting to receive and adopt the financial
statement for the year ending 31 March 2012. The financial report was received for adoption
by Dr Noorul Fatha As’art and seconded by Siti Habibah Siraj.

5. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
5.1 President announced that PPIS will continue with the same auditor – Fadhilah Goh & Co for the
upcoming financial year as PPIs has a maximum of 5 years to retain the same auditor. Thus we
are able to continue with their service for the next two FY.
5.2 Siti Zainon Hassan indicated that she had understood the Constitution allowed for an auditor
to be appointed for only two consecutive years. An immediate check on the Constitution confirmed that such a provision was not made.
5.3 President shared that as a practice, PPIS would change auditors after being appointed for five
consecutive years.
5.4 President thus proposed to continue with the same auditor, Fadhilah Goh & Co for the next 2
years and this was accepted by the members.

6. RESOLUTIONS ON BOARD’S PROPOSALS
Hon Secretary highlighted that several amendments and new inclusions to the Constitution
were proposed by the Board resolution in today’s meeting. Please refer to Annex 4.
6.1 Amendment to the Constitution
6.1.1 Annual Subscription
Referring to Clause 7.3, the Ordinary and Associate membership will be adjusted to $25
per annum. Life membership will be increased from $150 to $250.

ar|fy|12|13

9

Ms Manijeh enquired on the current status of those who are already life members and the
Hon Sec clarified that the adjusted amount will only apply to new members.
6.1.2 Conduct of Meeting
Referring to Clause 9.2 (a) (ii), that states that an Extraordinary General Meeting can be
convened at the request in writing of not “less than 20% or 50 of the voting members”.
This clause is proposed to be changed to “not less than 25% or 30 of the voting members”.
This is to reflect the actual number of members we have – of which the last count was
about only 110 members.
6.1.3 Composition of the Board
Referring to Clause 10.2 (b), the proposed amendment is to the position of Vice President
- from one to up to 2 Vice Presidents. Ms Manijeh suggested that the clause “a minimum
of 1 and maximum of 2” be changed to simply “a maximum of 2”.
Referring to Clause 1.3, the post of the Immediate Past President (IPP) will be changed
from a 2-year term to that of 4 years. Ms Manijeh enquired whether the appointment of
the IPP for a period of 4 years is giving too much latitude for the organisation to “allow
proper succession and handover”. Ms Manijeh felt that the 2 years would be enough a
time for this to occur.
Ms Fatimah Azimullah shared that it is good to have the IPP to have 2 terms as her input
or advice will be useful and needed in the organisation. Ms Manijeh noted that 1 term
consisted of 2 years and as such it is acceptable for her for the appointment to be for 4
years, as it will be based on 2 terms.
6.2 Appointment of Trustees of PPIS pursuant to Clause 12A.2
6.2.1 The Board of Directors of PPIS has decided to Appoint Trustees for a 4 years term so
that any point PPIS acquires any immovable property (such as a building), such property
shall be vested in trustees subject to declaration of trust. There should at least be 2 to 4
trustees appointed, after which PPIS will then informed the Registrar of Societies as well
as the Commissioner of Societies of their new appointment. The Appointed Trustees are:
a.
b.
c.

Fatimah Bte Azimullah
Fadlun Bte Hj Abdul Kadir
Sapiah D/O Junab Abdul Barick Molla

6.2.2 Ms Manijeh requested for Mdm Fadlun to be present for familiarity. However the
President informed the meeting that Mdm Fadlun was unable to attend the AGM. She
also added that Mdm Fadlun was an ex-Board member and her profession is a lawyer.
6.2.3 President then confirmed with the members of the appointment of Trustees and the
members have no objections. President proceeded to confirm appointment of the
Trustees.

10
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6.3 Adoption of the Proposed Resolutions
6.3.1 Hon Secretary presented the list of Resolutions to be adopted by the AGM as follows:
a.
b.

Amendment of the Constitution (as per Annex 4)
Appoint the following persons as Trustees of PPIS pursuant to Clause 12A.2 of the
proposed amended Constitution :
i.
ii.
iii.

Fatimah Bte Azimullah
Fadlun Bte Hj Abdul Kadir
Sapiah D/O Junab Abdul Barick Molla

c.

Continue and/ or proceed with the purchase of the property known as WIS@Changi
#03-02 (“the Property”) and to sign all documents and do all acts necessary to complete
the said purchase.

d.

To authorise the trustees to sign all documents and do all acts necessary to complete the
said purchase and to have the Property vested in the said Trustees who shall hold the
Property in trust for PPIS.

6.3.2 Since there were no objections, the President concluded that the meeting has received
and adopt the resolutions proposed by the Board.

7. ELECTION OF BOARD MEMBERS FOR THE TERM 2012-2014
7.1 President thanked the outgoing Board for their service to PPIS. She expressed her hope that
their period in service had been meaningful for them. Subsequently, President declared that
the Board for the term FY 2011 – FY 2012 is dissolved.
7.2 Pres proposed the incoming list of Board nominees for the term 2012 – 2014. These are:
President 			
Vice President			
Hon Treasurer 		
Asst Honorary Treasurer
Honorary Secretary
Asst Hon Secretary
Board Members		
					
					
					
					
					
					
					
					

-

Sapiah Molla
Kamariah Adnan
Faridah Tay Abdullah
Noorul Fatha As’art
Dahliyah Hamid
Rahayu Mahzam
Dr Bibi Jan Mohd Ayyub
Siti Habibah Siraj
Masmunah Abdullah
Salina Samion
Nur Adila Teo
Hazlina Abdul Halim
Maslina Malik
Nur Amalina Abdul Ghani
Rahayu Mohamad
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7.3 The meeting agreed to the election of the above members to form the Board for 2012-2014.
7.4 President proposed for Cikgu Fatimah Azimullah to be appointed as a Trustee and Advisor. The
meeting agreed to the proposal.
7.6 President subsequently thanked long serving Board members who will leave or have left the
Board, namely:
					
Cigku Fatimah Azimullah
					
Mariam Alias
					
Siti Hamidah Bahashwan
					
Saadiah Sahal
7.7 The following long serving Board members delivered a few words.
i.

Mariam Alias who has been a Board member for 12 years shared that she had always
believed in PPIS’ cause. She expressed her pride to be a part of PPIS and to see it grow.
She encouraged members and those present to join PPIS and support or sponsor PPIS.
She stressed the need for PPIS to have strong reserves to sustain the organisation. GLOW
program pamphlets were distributed to encourage members to recruit new members to
PPIS.

ii.

Cikgu Fatimah Azimullah echoed the call for members to contribute to PPIS. She stressed
that no amount is too small as the sum of these small donations would tantamount to a
substantial sum.

8. ANY OTHER MATTERS
8.1 As there were no other matters to discuss, the 41st Annual General Meeting was brought to
a close at 11.18 am with the recitation of Tasbih Kaffarah and Surah al-Asr led by Mohd Ali
Mahmood.
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Resolutions and motions to amend
the rules should be sent by members for inclusion in Agenda of
Meeting to the Honorary Secretary
and should not later than 7 days before the date fixed for the Meeting.

Resolutions and motions to amend the Constitution should be sent by
members for inclusion in Agenda of Meeting to the Honorary Secretary and should not be later than 7 days before the date fixed for the
Meeting.

(a)

(a)

To clarify that rules
mean Constitution.

Conduct of Meeting

Ordinary Membership - $12.00 per
annum
Associate Membership - $12.00 per
annum
Life Membership - $150.00 (one
time payment)

Conduct of Meeting

9.1.2

(c)

(b)

(a)

7.3 Annual Subscription
Members shall pay the following annual subscription from the date of Only NEW members
will be affected with
admission as member for each calendar year:
these changes.
(a)
Ordinary Membership - $25.00 per annum
(b)
Associate Membership - $25.00 per annum
(c)
Life Membership - $250.00 (one time payment)
To encourage long
term membership
commitment.

Annual Subscription
Members shall pay the following annual
subscription from the date of admission as
member for each calendar year:

7.3

To clarify that
secretary refers to
Hon. Secretary and
committee refers to
the Board.

(a)
An application for membership shall be made on a prescribed form
duly completed and submitted to the Honorary Secretary. The Board is
empowered to reject an application for membership without assigning any
reasons.

Admission
(a)
An application for membership
shall be made on a prescribed form duly
completed and submitted to the Secretary.
The Committee is empowered to reject
an application for membership without
assigning any reasons.

Explanation &
Reasons for
Amendments

Proposed Rule(s)

7.2

Renumbered
Rule No.

Existing Rule(s)

Rule
No.

14
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10.3

10.2

At the request in writing of not less than 20% or
50 of the voting members, whichever is the lesser
number, and stating the objectives and reasons for
convening the meeting.

(ii)

A President
A Vice-President
An Honorary Secretary
An Assistant Honorary Secretary
An Honorary Treasurer
An Assistant Honorary Treasurer
A minimum of four (4) and a maximum of nine (9)
other members.

Immediate Past President
The Board may appoint the Immediate Past President as a
board member for a period of 2 years.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

Composition of the Board
The Board shall consist of the following members:-

(b) Rules governing the quorum & conduct for an AGM
shall apply to an EGM.

(i)

An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened:
Whenever the Board may deem it desirable; and/or

Extraordinary General Meeting

9.2

(a)

Existing Rule(s)

Rule
No.

Renumbered
Rule No.

Rules governing the quorum & conduct for an AGM
shall apply to an EGM.

(b)

Immediate Past President
The Board may appoint the Immediate Past President as a
board member for a period of 4 years.

Composition of the Board
The Board shall consist of the following members:A President
Vice-President(s) (a maximum of 2)
An Honorary Secretary
An Assistant Honorary Secretary
An Honorary Treasurer
An Assistant Honorary Treasurer
A minimum of four (4) and a maximum of nine (9) other
members.

At the request in writing of not less than 25% or 30 of
the voting members, whichever is the lesser number,
and stating the objectives and reasons for convening
the meeting.

(ii)

Extraordinary General Meeting
(a)
An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened:
(i)
Whenever the Board may deem it desirable; and/or

Proposed
Rule(s)

To allow proper
succession and handover.

To standardise the
number with the rules
governing the quorum
for AGM and EGM.

Explanation &
Reasons for
Amendments
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Rule
No.

Existing
Rule(s)

12A

Explanation &
Reasons for
Amendments

In the event the office of the trustee is vacated for any reason, necessary and prompt
action shall be taken to remove the trustee’s name from all relevant legal documents and
to notify the Registrar of Societies and Commissioner of Charities accordingly, as per Clause
12A.6.
Notice of any proposal to remove a trustee from his trusteeship or to appoint a new trustee
to fill a vacancy must be given by posting it on the notice board in the Society’s premises at
least two weeks before the General Meeting at which the proposal is to be discussed.
The result of such General Meeting shall then be notified to the Registrar of Societies and
the Commissioner of Charities.

(c)

(d)

The address of each immovable, name of each trustee and any subsequent change must 		
be notified to the Registrar of Societies and the Commissioner of
Charities.

If he is absent from the Republic of Singapore for a period of more than one year.
If he is guilty of misconduct of such a kind as to render it undesirable that he continues as
a trustee. If he submits notice of resignation from his trusteeship.

(b)

12A.4		

If the trustee dies or becomes a person who lacks capacity as defined in the Mental Capacity
Act or becomes of unsound mind or becomes physically incapacitated and unable to carry
out his duties as trustee.

The office of the Trustees shall be vacated:

12A.3
(a)

The trustees of the Society shall :
(a)
Not be more than 4 and not less than 2 in number.
(b)
Be elected by a General Meeting of members.
(c)
Not effect any sale or mortage of property without the prior approval of the General 		
Meeting of members.

12A.2

NEW CLAUSES
To comply with the
12A
CUSTODIAN TRUSTEES
current guidelines on im12A.1
1If the Society at any time acquires any immovable property, such property shall be vested in movable property owned
trustees subject to declaration of trust.
by associations

Renum- Proposed
bered
Rule(s)
Rule No.

CORPORATE SERVICES
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
For FY 2012-2013, Corporate Communications continued to work closely with PPIS Service centres
for consistent and effective branding.
The media publicity and promotions of PPIS’ programmes have helped to create greater awareness
of PPIS’ services and its dedication in helping, supporting and developing the women, children and
families.
PPIS also played its role as a Muslim women organisation by highlighting issues of the contemporary
women.

CEO Maznah Masop shared on the daily challenges
of women in Singapore.

President Sapiah Molla, featured with other Muslim
Women leaders, in Straits Times’ special report,
“Feminine Face of Islam”.

RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

DPM Tharman expressed
concern during PPIS 60th
Anniversary Charity Dinner

Resource Development is responsible for the oversight of 3 functions in the organization:
Fund Development
Volunteer Management
ICT

16
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Fund Development
The total amount raised in FY12-13 was $598,909 through various fund raising activities held
throughout the year.

Fund-raising Event Highlights
May ’12 Singapore Pakistani Association’s
annual gala dinner raised $72, 968 for
PPIS as its beneficiary.
Jun ’12 PPIS’ 60th anniversary charity
dinner, graced by DPM Tharman
Shanmugaratnam, received a total
collection of $148, 478.
July ’12 Ramadhan Appeal
raised a sum of $228, 801,
thanks to the generosity of
our community.
Nov ’12 Friday Mosque
Collection held islandwide
collected a total amount of
$69,376.
Mar ’13 President’s Challenge closed FY12-13
fund-raising campaign by awarding PPIS Student
Care Centres $100,000 for their needy students
enrichment and development programmes.

Volunteer Management
We saw more volunteers come forward to offer their time and assistance in conducting programmes
and activities that are especially related to the youth and children. PPIS also collaborated with
President’s Challenge committee by hosting open house at our Student Care Centres to heighten
the spirit of volunteerism.

Our Supervisor, Mdm Zaleha and
students from PPIS Student Care
Centre Bedok with President
Tony Tan at President’s Challenge
Cheque Presentation Ceremony
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Projek Ihsan Ramadhan also gathered a pool of volunteers from all walks of life – students,
housewives, PMETS, house agents and more to pack and distribute the goody hammpers to the
poor and the needy.

Young volunteers assisting in Projek
Ihsan Ramadan 2012

Volunteers packing food items for Projek Ihsan
Ramadan 2012

Student volunteers from Republic
Poly distributing goody hampers.

ICT
PPIS ICT main focus was to stabilize cloud connectivity issues and gap analysis between PPIS and
outsource vendor Kumoworks Company.
ICT has suggested and developed new “services and policies” which were implemented at Kumoworks
to build-up a more secure and reliable access to PPIS information data.
•
•
•
•
•

Level 3 Technical Support personnel brought in to resolve technical issue on time
Activated Shadow backup for PPIS data security
Implemented authentication security
Implemented Service level agreement for cloud service and technical support
New “Helpdesk system” with Kumoworks to report all ICT related issue

ICT has developed and enforced several new internal policies to make sure that all required
information is available with proper structure.
•
•
•

18

ar|fy|12|13

ICT Annual Budget - To keep track of annual ICT budget for all PPIS Offices
ICT CAPEX - To keep track of all ICT related hardware and software purchase with
proper authorization.
Asset Allocation - To keep track of all ICT related hardware and software allocation

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT SOCIAL SERVICES
Professional Development (PD) Social Services was a follow-up to a Training & Learning Needs
Analysis conducted between October 2010 and February 2011.
Following its initial phases, FY 2012-2013 saw PD Social Services continuing to address the needs with
regards to the development of its pool of caseworkers and had focussed on developing, nurturing
and supporting PPIS professionals towards capacity building and personal development to meet the
standards required for their core job functions.

Major updates/Highlights
To meet the above objective, the following were implemented and focused upon in FY 2012-2013:
•
Clinical Supervision Support Programme
•
Personal Development Counselling
•
Professional Development In-House Training
•
Training and Development Programme

1)

Clinical Supervision Support Programme
Clinical Supervision Support Programme (CSSP) was rolled out in April 2012 and
was committed in contributing towards the development of practitioners so as to
promote the provision of quality care for individuals and families. Its multi-tiered
clinical supervision efforts focused on enhancing the caseworkers’ developmental
needs by promoting self-reflexivity and reflexive in practice. Through the clinical
support initiatives, CSSP aim to develop more confident and systemically grounded
caseworkers.
CSSP is overseen by Senior Family Therapist Maimunah Mosli with close collaboration
with the Centre Managers so as to ensure the smooth running of the programme. CSSP
Initiatives are:

a) Individual Clinical Supervision
Individual Clinical Supervision (ICS) sessions were conducted
with individual caseworkers identified by their respective
Centre Managers.
A total of 66 sessions were conducted throughout 20122013. These monthly ICS sessions had allowed and provided
caseworkers an opportunity to look at their practice such as
their positions in relation to the issues presented by clients,
their approaches, interventions and directions with regards to
the issues. The ICS also offered the caseworkers with a platform
to clarify and receive support and guidance with regards to dilemmas faced in the course of
counselling.
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b)

Group Supervision

Group Supervision (GS) offered individual caseworker the experience of being supported by their
respective team. The group dynamics offered the Team with an opportunity to reflect and consolidate
on centre-based issues and clarified their Agency’s positions.

2)

Personal Development Counselling

In professional practice, personal development is an essential, continuous and evolving process for
every professional helper. Helpers need to be sufficiently prepared for, and supported in coping with
the complexities and unpredictability of clients and of the social reality within which they operate.
Personal Development Counselling aims at enabling caseworkers to develop the necessary emotional
resilience, self-awareness and the ability to reflect on and analyse what they are seeing.
Objectives:
i)
ii)

Increase self-awareness
Identify personal development issues that could
influence the helping role and relationship and identify
steps that could be taken to address these issues if
necessary
“It helped me become more aware of myself of my
own strengths and weaknesses and how it impacted
the helping process and my role as a helper. I was comfortable telling her (the Personal
Development counsellor) my struggles and my own coping mechanisms.”
Caseworker/Mid Review

3)

Professional Development In-House Training

A number of In-House Training sessions were organised. A follow-up of earlier training to equip
social workers with Syariah Tools was carried out namely, the Maqasid Syariah (Objectives of Syariah
Laws) held on 31st April 2012 followed by a tutorial on 26 May 2012. 29 Social Workers attended
these sessions conducted by Ustaz Muhammad Haniff Hassan.

4)

Training & Development Programme

Centre Managers/Senior Social Workers:
2012 also saw the managers undergoing leadership training as follows:
•
•
•
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Professional & Leadership Development Scheme (NCSS in collaboration with
UNISIM, CCC and LKY School of Public Policy): Amran Jamil, Fajariah Saban,
Nooraini Md Razak
Social Leadership Singapore 2012 (NVPC): Fazlinda Faroo
Mentoring under Master Social Worker Benny Bong: Kamariah Yusof, Senior Social
Worker Fatimah Eunos (NCSS)

Senior Family Therapist:
Sabbatical Leave
In Feb 2013, SFT Maimunah was granted the 4 weeks of
sabbatical leave where she left and visited the renowned
Institute of Family Therapy in UK and spent the last week of her
sabbatical leave in Chicago, USA and benefited from a Family
Therapy Academy Conference organised by Academy of Family
Therapy Association, USA. This ‘halting’ and learning provided
a dimension that offered a new appreciation of work and how
she could offer a difference that makes difference in the work
with the organisation.
Others:
Collaboration - Conference Collaborative Dance – A systemic Conference 2012
PPIS collaborated in a national family therapy conference co-organised with the Association of Marital
and Family Therapy and Counselling and Care. SFT Maimunah presented in one of the workshop
on “Conversation with Deontic Logic: Working with Malay Muslim Clients”. The Conference was
attended by 250 local practitioners and had enabled PPIS to foster a good working relationship and
contributed towards creating a niche in working with Malay Muslim context.

Moving Forward
Following the implementation of PD initiatives in the past one year, it is timely that a review be
conducted and the learning process be documented which will be the focus of the next phase.
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TRAINING AND CONSULTANCY
PPIS Training & Consultancy (T&C) continues to focus its efforts in providing training and consultancy
services specializing in Social Services during the Financial Year 2012-2013.

Major updates/Highlights

1.	Direction for T&C
In its second year in operation, T&C saw the need to define the department’s mission and purpose.
With valuable input from Key Personnels, the T&C Vision, Mission, Objective and Service Philosophy
was established and adopted to guide as well as set direction for the department.

VISION

Cross-cultural competent professionals and a socially competent Muslim community.
*Definition of Socially Connected – For the Muslim community to be able to internalize knowledge
(through various public education programmes and trainings), is aware and conscious (of issues
concerning the community), is actively involved and engaged, willing to review (themselves) and
apply positive knowledge and values to self and family for the benefit of the community and future
generations.

MISSION
•
•

To provide impactful training and consultancy work for
professionals to develop cross-cultural competency.
To create platforms for members of the Muslim
community to be aware and skilled in dealing with
individual, family and social issues.

OBJECTIVES
•
•
•
•

To build the capabilities of staff and other social service professional in working with
the Malay-Muslim clientele/community.
To build the capacity and harness the capabilities of staff to become credible trainers in
our niche knowledge/skill area.
To build the capacities of Muslim individuals in the community to be able to deal with
the self, family and society.
To develop PPIS into a leading organisation in the provision of training and consultancy
services in its niche areas.

PHILOSOPHY

T&C’s Service Philosophy is rooted in PPIS’ Organisational Vision of being the catalyst of change for
Muslim Women. The philosophy must also be in tandem with the values of S (Sincere) A (Pro-Active);
C (Compassionate); R (Reliable); E (Efficient & Effective) & D (Dakwah).
T&C service philosophy is to seize and create opportunities to elicit change for beneficiaries either
through direct or indirect training activities.
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2. T&C Activities
T&C conducted the following activities during FY 2012-2013:

During the year under review, T&C conducted training programmes
and talks to about 655 participants. The highlight of this year’s training
includes the launch of T&C’s in-house Coffee Morning Talk series. The
series which aimed to aid social service professionals understand and
provide useful insight into the positions and perspectives of their Malay
Muslim Clients were well received by both Muslim and non-Muslim
professionals.
Following the Service Audit of the existing national Marriage Guidance
Programme that T&C conducted for MSF, T&C was fortunate to be
awarded the contract to review and make recommendations to the
existing curriculum of the Marriage Guidance Programme. After an
extensive 6 month of study, a final report and proposed new curriculum
was submitted to MSF.
This year, another department from MSF also sought the expertise of T&C to ensure appropriate
content and correct public messaging for a Malay Drama titled Anakku Sayang to shed the
misconception of reconstituted families. T&C worked with the team from PPIS Vista Sakinah for this
project.
T&C Revenue Source for year 2012-2013
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T&C Activities

24

Date

Training Activity

Requesting Organisation

Speaker /
Consultant

20-Jun-12

Anakku Sayang - Docu Drama Consultation

Ministry of Social & Family
Development

Vista Sakinah

4-Jul-12

Making Outcome Measure Work for you

Social Service Institute

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

19-Jul-12

The Malay Muslim Worker: Same Same but
Different

Education Services Union

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

14-Jul-12

Developing Hakam Code of Ethics

Syariah Court

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

24-Aug-12

Basic Conversational Malay for Social Service
Practitioners

Social Service Institute

Fajariah Saban

Aug 12 Mar 13

Bersama Mu Review Part II & III

Ministry of Social & Family
Development

5 & 6 Sep-12

Working and Understanding the Malay-Muslim
Client

Social Service Institute

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

10-Oct-12

Logic Model & Outcome Measurement for
Programme Planners

Mendaki SENSE

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

19-Nov-12

The Malay Worker-Client Relationship :
Understanding Change

Social Service Institute

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

1-Dec-12

MUIS Alive Seminar

MUIS

Nooraini Mohd
Razak

16 & 17
Jan-13

Working and Understanding the Malay-Muslim
Client

Social Service Institute

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

9-Jan-13

Coffee Morning Series - Raihanah Halid

in-house

Raihanah Halid

6-Feb-13

Bersama Mu Sharing with Educators

Ministry of Social & Family
Development

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

9-Feb-13

Befrienders - Run 11

MUIS

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

16-Feb-13

Befrienders - Run 12

MUIS

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

1-Mar-13

Befrienders - Run 13

MUIS

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

8-Mar-11

Mengimbas Pengalaman Anda Sebagai Pendamping

MUIS

Mohd Ali
Mahmood

27-Mar-13

Coffee Morning Series - Zahara Mahmood

in-house

Zahara
Mahmood

27-28 Mar
13

Outcome Measures

Social Service Institute

Mohd Ali
Mahmood
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SOCIAL SERVICES
FAMILY SERVICE CENTRES
Core Service/Programme Information
The main objective of PPIS Family Service Centres is to provide support to individuals and
families through its Casework and Counselling (C&C), Information and Referral (I&R),
Community Support Programmes as well as Networking and Outreach Services. Both FSC
(West) and FSC (East) do not only serve immediate clients living in the estates nearby, they
also supplement the services of other FSCs in the neighboring estates when the need for a
Malay-speaking social worker arises.

FAMILY SERVICE CENTRE (EAST)
PPIS Family Service Centre (East) opened its doors to the public and community partners in
April 2010 and is the second Family Service Centre (FSC) run by PPIS.

Major updates/Highlights

1. Casework and Counselling
FSC (East) managed a total of 281 registered C&C cases in Financial Year (FY) 2012-2013, a
hike of 29% as compared to 218 cases registered in the previous FY (refer to Tables 1), with
the most increase in the non-Malay cases. For the past 2 years, there has been an increased in
the number of non-Malay cases – for Chinese cases, the number of cases increased by 137.5%
from 16 cases in FY 2010-2011 to 38 cases in FY 2012-2013 while for Indian and other races
cases, the number of cases increased by more than 94% from 34 cases in FY 2010-2011 to 66
cases in FY 2012-2013.
Table 1: New cases registered at FSC (East)
Registered
Cases

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Number of
Registered
C&C Cases

228

218

281

The proportion of those seeking help remained predominantly women (63.3%) over the past
3 FYs. However, FSC (East) has also seen an increase in the number of men seeking help in FY
2012-2013 (refer to Tables 2).
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Table 2: Gender breakdown of new cases managed by FSC (East)
Gender

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Male

90 (39%)

68 (31.2%)

103 (36.7%)

Female

138 (61%)

150 (68.8%)

178 (63.3%)

Total

228 (100%)

218 (100%)

281 (100%)

Presenting issues seen at FSC (East) in the last FY remained mostly financial. The percentage of
cases presenting with financial issues continued to be high over the 3 Fys given the higher proportion of low-income families and elderly living in the FSC’s service boundaries including those residing in Bedok, Eunos and Tampines (refer to Table 3).
Table 3: Top 3 presenting issues at FSC (East)
Top 3 Presenting
Issues

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Financial

87 (38%)

81 (37%)

114 (40%)

Marital

45 (20%)

35 (16%)

52 (18%)

Housing/
Accommodation

42 (18%)

39 (18%)

39 (14%)

Others

54 (24%)

63 (29%)

76 (27%)

In addition, FSC (East) attended to 835 Information & Referral (I & R) over the last FY, a 45% increase compared to 575 information and referrals received in FY 2011-2012 (refer to Table 4).
Table 4: Number of I & R managed by FSC (East)
Information and
Referral

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Number of I & R
received (includes
walk-ins, phone
calls, faxes and
emails)

629

575

835

a. Surpass National Targets
FSC (East) surpassed all targets set by the National Council of Social Service (NCSS) this FY with an
average active case of 232 (refer to Table 5 & Table 6).
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Table 5: Number of active cases for each quarter in FY 2012-2013
Output Indicator

NCSS Target (Active cases/
Duration)

Achievement

Active Cases Q1

200/quarter

225

Active Cases Q2

200/quarter

258

Active Cases Q3

200/quarter

242

Active Cases Q4

200/quarter

201

Table 6: FSC (East) achievement for NCSS outcome indicators
Outcome Indicator

NCSS Target

Achievement

Clients achieved enhanced
problem-solving/coping skills

80%

Half-year 1 (87%)
Half-year 2 (100%)

Clients achieved enhanced
relationship/networks that
improve their situation

80%

Half-year 1 (87%)
Half-year 2 (100%)

Clients achieved improved
ability to manage on their
own

30%

Half-year 1 (80%)
Half-year 2 (100%)

Clients are successfully linked
with appropriate services

80%

Half-year 1 (100%)
Half-year 2 (100%)

2.

Community Support Programmes

Two batches of the Talking Pot programme were conducted last
FY, making it a total of 4 runs organized since its pilot run in late
FY 2011-2012. The 8-session programme which catered to women
from low-income families consisted of cooking and support group
components where the participants did not just learned to cook
healthily with a small budget but also received support from each
other through facilitated support group sessions.
The support group sessions covered topics from identifying
strengths in self, understanding multiple roles that women play,
learning effective coping strategies to issues of self-care. Batch 3 of
the programme was held from November 2012 to December 2012
and saw an average attendance of 5 participants while Batch 4 held
from January 2013 to March 2013 had an average turn-out of 8
participants.
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FSC (East) also piloted an alumni activity for past participants
of Talking Pot in FY2012/2013. Projek Biskut Raya held during
the month of Ramadhan on 4 and 11 August 2012 was a
participant-led initiative to give back to the lesser fortunate
in our community. The participants baked 3 types of Hari Raya
kuehs using FSC (East) kitchen facility. About 10 bottles of kueh
were distributed to Darul Ihsan Orphanages and Darul Takrim
Home for the Aged while the remaining bottles of kueh were
kept for their own families as Hari Raya goodies.
Some of the feedback from clients:
“Secara keseluruhan, saya bersedia dan berkeyakinan untuk
mempraktikkan ilmu yang diperolehi menerusi aktiviti di FSC
(East) ke dalam kehidupan harian.”(As a whole, I am ready and
confident to practice the knowledge gained through activities at
FSC (East) into my daily lives.)
“Berbanding sebelum ini, pengetahuan saya meningkat.” (As
compared to before these (counselling sessions), My knowledge
has increased compared to before these counselling sessions.)
“Perancangan dan perlaksanaan program telah dibuat dengan
lancar.” (Planning and execution of (FSC (East)) events are done
successfully.)
“Setiap kali kita mengadakan kumpulan sokongan, bagi saya ia adalah berguna kerana ia
berkaitan dengan kehidupan saya.” (Every support group session is useful as it is relevant to
my life.)

3.

Community Networking and Outreach
FSC (East) worked closely with nearby agencies like Kembangan-Chai Chee Senior Activity
Centre (SAC) and enhanced our referral process as well as working relationship between the
two agencies. With the streamlined protocol, PPIS social workers from FSC (East) can be called
upon by the SAC to attend to their elderly participants on-site rather than having the elderly
to walk to the FSC (East).
FSC (East) collaborated with Marine Parade FSC (MPFSC) to embark on a Joint Beach Combing
activity at East Coast Park from December 2012 to May 2013. Social workers from both FSCs
joined hands to reach out to families and individuals living in tents on the beach once every
fortnight for 6 months. As the families reached out to were predominantly Malay, FSC (East)
social workers were able to engage them effectively and offer them information, assistance
and support.
At the same time, it was an excellent opportunity for cross-agency learning as our social workers
from FSC (East) learned from our counterparts at MPFSC ways to engage the community at
the beach while the MPFSC’s social workers gained a better understanding of the culture and
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challenges faced by the Malay families.
The collaboration culminated in a BBQ
event attended by the families and
individuals whom had been reached
out to by the two FSCs. Through these
efforts, more than 10 families and
individuals have been supported with
information and assistance.
Tanjong Katong Secondary School
partnered with FSC (East) for the second
consecutive year for Project SERVE, a
community involvement project led
by the students held over 2 days on 3
and 10 November 2012. This FY, the
students brought cheer into the lives
of 16 low-income families and elderly
through disbursement of food and
household items as well as giving their
flat units a fresh coat of paint.

Moving Forward
FSC (East) will remain dedicated to serve the needs of families and individuals living in the east
through its casework and counselling, support group programme, partnership initiatives and
outreach efforts. It will continue to enhance its collaboration with existing partners such as
MPFSC to reach out to more families living on the beach as well as with the SAC and grassroots
leaders to better serve the elderly and needy families within Chai Chee, Bedok and Eunos
community.
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FAMILY SERVICE CENTRE (WEST)
Since PPIS Family Service Centre (West) moved to Bukit Batok in 2009, marital cases have been
our top presenting concern for our counselling services. FSC (West) is also an appointed centre
to provide Marital Counselling Programme in collaboration with Syariah Court as well as the
Family Court and Ministry of Social and Family Development (MSF).

Major updates/Highlights

1. Building staff capacities
For FY2012/2013, FSC (WEST) continued to focus on building capacities for the staff by
supporting them through continual educational in the field of social work. With relevant
academic knowledge along with close supervision, our caseworkers would be equipped to
provide casework and counselling services effectively. The following table showed FSC (WEST)
commitment to staff life-long learning journey:
Table 1: List of courses attended by FSC (West) staff
Professional Courses Attended/Completed

Quantity

Masters in Social Work (NUS)

1

Masters in Social Work (UniSIM)

1

Post-graduate diploma in Social Work (NUS)
Post-graduate diploma in Social Work (UniSIM)
Degree in Social Work (SSTI-Monash)
Degree in Social Work (UniSIM)

1 graduated in FY 2012-2013
3 (1 graduated in FY 2012-2013)
1 graduated in FY 2012-2013
1

In order to promote better work-life balance as well
as improve camaraderie among staff, our Staff’s
Social & Recreational Committee (SSRC) organised
regular events for staff throughout the year. Events
include birthday celebrations, pottery session, festive
celebrations as well as sporting activities such as
badminton. This year the committee successfully
organised and carried out a weekend retreat for staff
at Pulau Springs, Johor Bahru, Malaysia from 16 to 17
September.
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2. Casework and Counselling
FSC (West) managed a total of 580 registered casework and counselling (C&C) cases in FY 20122013, there was a slight drop of about 1% compared to 588 cases registered in the previous FY.
Out of these cases, almost half are new cases.
The FSC saw a downward trend of new registered cases (refer to Table 2), especially in this
financial year. This was due to the following reasons:
A reduction in expected caseload from 50 to 40 active cases per caseworker as
stipulated by NCSS.
Cases needed more intensive intervention due to increased complexity of the problems
presented. This meant more time was needed to deal with each case; limiting the number of new cases that could be accepted.
A high number of junior caseworkers at FSC WEST that were undergoing social work
conversion. The casework supervisors had to limit the junior workers’ caseload in order
to provide effective supervision and guidance on case management.
Table 2: New cases registered at FSC (West)
New
Registered
Cases

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Number
of New
Registered
C&C Cases

350

223

195

Women (78.5%) continued to be the predominant group that sought help or initiate getting
assistance from the FSC. Although there was an overall decline in the percentage of men
seeking help, the number was still substantial. Generally, they were also more willing to come
for couple work.
Table 3: Gender breakdown of new cases managed by FSC (West)
Gender

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Male

114 (32.6%)

50 (31.2%)

42 (21.5%)

Female

236 (67.4%)

173 (77.6%)

153 (78.5%)

Total

350 (100%)

223 (100%)

195 (100%)
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Presenting issues seen at FSC (West) in the last FY remained predominantly marital. The
percentage of marital cases had gradually increased for the last three FYs. Though financial
concern came in second, these cases tend to be of multiple issues such as unemployment,
addiction and family violence.
We continued to work closely with other agencies in fulfilling the needs for services related to
youth, particularly with AMP@Jurong Point.
Table 4: Top 3 presenting issues at FSC (West)
Top 3 Presenting
Issues

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Marital

105 (30%)

79 (35%)

84 (43.1%)

Financial

44 (13%)

55 (24%)

40 (20.5%)

Housing/
Accommodation

23 (6%)

22 (9.8%)

18 (9.2%)

Others

178 (51%)

67 (31%)

53 (28%)

FSC (West) attended to 1000 Information & Referral (I & R) over the last FY, just slightly lower
than last FY (See Table 6 below).
Table 5: Number of I & R managed by FSC (West)
Information and
Referral

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Number of I & R
received (includes
walk-ins, phone
calls, faxes and
emails)

1378

1054

1000

a. Surpass National Targets
FSC (West) managed to maintain all targets set by NCSS this FY for the first three quarters
but fall short in the last quarter as the agency faced the challenge of the exit of senior staff.
Nevertheless, the average of active case stands at 203.5 per quarter.
Table 6: Number of active cases for each quarter in FY 2012-2013

Active Cases Q1

NCSS Target (Active cases/
Duration)
200/quarter

Active Cases Q2

200/quarter

202

Active Cases Q3

200/quarter

203

Active Cases Q4

200/quarter

180

Output Indicator
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Achievement
229

Table 7: FSC (West)’s achievement for NCSS outcome indicators
Outcome Indicator

NCSS Target

Achievement

Clients achieved
enhanced problemsolving/coping skills

80%

H1 (91%)
H2 (82%)

Clients achieved
enhanced relationship/
networks that improve
their situation

80%

H1 (98%)
H2 (97%)

Clients achieved
improved ability to
manage on their own

30%

H1 (100%)
H2 (100%)

Clients are successfully
linked with appropriate
services

80%

H1 (100%)
H2 (98%)

Some of the feedback from clients:
“After counselling I’m coping better and very satisfied with the assistance and service. Thank
you.”
“Saya tidak akan teragak-agak untuk memperkenalkan pada kawan-kawan atau sesiapa tentang
sesi kaunseling ini sekiranya mereka memerlukannya.” (I will not hesitate to introduce to my
friends or anyone about the counselling service here if they need it).
“Alhamdulillah saya dan suami telah tekad untuk teruskan rumahtangga kami setelah sesi-sesi
kaunseling Terima kasih” (Praise to Allah, my husband and I are now determined to continue
with our marriage after several counselling sessions. Thank you).

3. Community Support Programme
HOME Programmes continued to be FSC (West) signature
community support programme which attracted 123 women.
In order to reach out to more beneficiaries, FSC (West)
worked closely with social service agencies within the South
West clusters which included the CDCs, FSCs and South West
Mosques Cluster. These agencies have since been referring
their beneficiaries for HOME Programme. FSC (West) also
worked closely with PPIS Corporation Communications division
to review the programme publicity effort.
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This year, the programme piloted two new initiatives, one
being a mentorship scheme for HOME Venture beneficiaries
where they received guidance on pro-bono basis by a local
entrepreneur in the area of setting up their home-based
business. The other initiatives was the implementation of
“HOME Gives Back” a community involvement programme
(CIP) to provide HOME participants with a platform to put
their skills into practice for the less privileged. The activities
rendered under this pilot run are:
Free hairdressing services for financially disadvantage
students from Alsagoff Arab School
Chocolate art sessions for beneficiaries of Hougang Sheng
Hong FSC and Singapore Association for the Deaf (SAD)
Mother and child cooking healthy meals session for
beneficiaries of @27 FSC
In addition, 17 new HOME graduates were referred
to Gourmet Guru by NTU SIFE (Students In Free
Enterprise) to be trained as trainers. Upon completion
of the training, they would work together with the
current pool of culinary trainers to conduct cooking
class for public.
HOME Programme and its beneficiaries continue to
attract media’s attention. On 12 August 2012, Madam
Mazidah Musa was featured in Berita Minggu. She has
benefitted from HOME Programme and is currently
a Gourmet
Guru trainer who conducted cooking classes at
Singapore Sports School. On 11 November 2012,
Madam Zalia Jaffar was featured in Berita Minggu,
a cancer survivor who has benefited from HOME
Programme. Madam Zalia has learnt tailoring skills
and culinary skills that consequently enable her to
increase her family income.
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4. Community Networking and Outreach Sessions
As part of the FSC networking and outreach effort, the following activities were conducted:
Project “kNow Your Passion” (N.Y.P)
In June 2012, PPIS FSC (West) collaborated with Nanyang Polytechnic (NYP) to pilot a oneyear project known as “kNow Your Passion” (N.Y.P). The project reached out to 28 NYP MalayMuslim students who were pursuing the Diploma in Social Sciences (Social Work). It served to
cultivate and increase the students’ interest in the social work field and create a generation of
the much needed Malay Muslim social work practitioners who were attuned to the needs of
the society.

Interagency visits & collaborations
For 2012, FSC representatives visited selected agencies namely Casa Raudhah Crisis Shelter,
AMP@Jurong Point and 27 FSC. FY 2012-2013 also hosted visits by both local and overseas
visitors. A study visit to Whispering Hearts FSC was conducted to understudy the application
ECMS in their casework administrative process. Apart from sharing of FSC programme and
services, these sessions helped caseworkers to get an update on available community resources
and enhanced partnerships with partners. Through the FSC (WEST) involvement in the Jurong
Family Violence Work Group (FVWG), FSC (WEST) was invited to one of the trainer for a training
session on family violence for the South West Police Division and on another occasion, FSC
(WEST) social workers were invited to facilitate a parenting focus group discussion by the same
police division.

Moving Forward
FSC (West) has participated in the Master Social Work Programme initiated by NCSS as part
of our effort to continue to upgrade the casework and counselling service umbrella. An
introductory meeting was conducted in January and the consultation proper began in February
and planned to end by December 2013. The Master Social Work assigned to work with the
agency is Mr Benny Bong. Among the areas of work include HOME Programme evaluation,
Needs Assessment, Casework Handbook and Supervision of Supervision.
In August 2013, NCSS/MSF launched Engaged@FSC pilot for FSCs as part of SS2016 ICT
masterplan. FSC (West) caseworkers will participate in a 2-years project to assess the benefits
of using mobile tablets and technology in their casework and counselling processes.
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PPIS STUDENT CARE CENTRES
Core Service/Programme Information
Located in Jurong West and Bedok Reservoir, the PPIS Student Care Centres provide before and after
school care for students between the ages of 7 to 14 years. The Centres ensure that the children
under their care received proper meals, homework supervision, stimulating indoor and outdoor activities, opportunities to develop good social skills as well as moral and spiritual growth.
For FY 2012-2013, both SCC Bedok and SCC Jurong focused on boosting their enrolment figures.
SCC Bedok’s average enrolment per month had risen to 90 and SCC Jurong’s average enrolment per
month was 75.
Table 1. Quarterly Movement of Enrolment for SCC Bedok and SCC Jurong Students for FY 20122013.
Q1-FY2012/13

Q2-FY2012/13

Q3-FY2012/13

Q4-FY2012/13

Apr May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

SCC Bedok
(n=100 max)

85

84

87

85

87

89

91

91

96

98

96

96

SCC Jurong
(n=86 max)

76

75

76

71

68

71

74

71

75

82

83

79

Major updates/Highlights

ENHANCEMENTS TO STUDENT CARE SUBSIDIES
There were changes made to the eligibility criteria of the Student Care Fee Assistance (SCFA)
scheme to enable more families to benefit from the scheme. This was part of Government’s
efforts to support working parents by ensuring their children have a continuum of care and
supervision when their children move from preschool to primary school. This took effect from
1 July 2012. The changes included:
Existing beneficiaries would receive higher student care subsidies.
The gross monthly household income eligibility cap had been increased from $2,500 to
$3,500 so that more families could benefit from student care subsidies.

·
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Per capita income (PCI) criteria was introduced so that larger lower income families
(with 5 or more family members) could benefit from higher student care subsides

PROGRAMME AND ACTIVITIES
Like previous years,
FY 2012-2013 was no
different, with fun and
q u a l i t y p ro g ra m m e s
planned to suit the
children’s needs and
interests. Among the
places we visited this
year was The Museum
Reflections at Bukit Chandu as part of the Total Defence Day Celebrations.
At Bukit Chandu, the children discovered the
history of Bukit Chandu and the Malay Regiment.
They learnt this through videos, animations,
pictures and props. Throughout the learning
journey, they were also required to collect pictures
of tubers found in the area. Tubers were like sweet
potatoes, tapioca and yam. The children found out
that these are the staples that people survived on
during the war.
Both centres had jointly organised functions,
workshops and camps with volunteers from
various tertiary institutions. The opportunities to
collaborate with one another had helped both staff and
children to interact and work as a team.
The previous FY saw both centres ending the year with
a 3-day and 2-night camp and a Family Day. Family
Races, barbequing and Mini Concert were some of the
activities we did at ECP to build the silaturrahim (close
relationship) between parents and staffs. Families
were encouraged to compete in the games while some
parents helped out in the BBQ preparation. Children
also put up a wonderful PPIS Style performance (to the
song of Gangnam Style) and sang ‘Like a Rose’ for
their families. Prizes were given to the winners of
the races.
All activities conducted were educational and
centered on the children’s social awareness.
Festivals were celebrated as part of the Cultural
Exchange
Programmes.
Enrichment
and
motivational workshops were conducted during
the school holidays.
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STORYBOOK-BASED CURRICULUM
Apart from the daily programme of homework supervision, we continued to carry out activities
based on selected story books. The book-based curriculum went into its fourth year to help
staff develop activities like arts and crafts, games, drama and projects focusing on the themes
and values reflected in the books chosen. We hoped that through inculcating value massages
in such activities, our students will develop a healthy outlook on life and become a role model
to their friends and peers.
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SPECIALISED SERVICES
PPIS AS-SALAAM FAMILY SUPPORT CENTRE
Core Service/Programme Information
The programmes at PPIS As-Salaam Family Support Centre aim to assist single parent families to
rebuild their families after their loss. Through our programmes, we hope that issues related to
single parent living such as adjustment to single parenthood, practical concerns and emotional
struggles, will be addressed and appropriate help given when necessary.

Major updates/Highlights
1.Family Casework & Counselling
In FY 2012-2013, the programme served a total of 315 cases, consistent with the number of cases
served in previous years (refer to Table 1). Out of the total cases served, 196 were new cases.
Table 1: Number of total cases served by PPIS As-Salaam Family Support Centre
Individuals
who registered
for Singleparent
Programme

April 2010 to
March 2011

April 2011 to
March 2012

April 2012 to
March 2013

Total SingleParents Served

322

319

315

2.

Community Support Programme

Support Programme for Single Mothers (M.A.W.A.R)
M.A.W.A.R programme facilitated the development of mutual support among single mothers via
group membership and activities. This is done mainly through:

a) Bicara Rasa support group meetings
The participants attended these bi-monthly sessions on various topics that were relevant to their
struggles. The sessions assisted them in acknowledging that they were not alone in their experiences
and they could also learn from the experience of others as well as mutually support each other.
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b)

Sakinah divorce recovery groups

These support groups prepared newly-divorced or soon-to-be divorced women to work on their
emotional divorce journey through learning to forgive and establish a more useful way of relating to
their ex-spouse in the context of parenting and moving on positively with their children.

c)

Mandiri Workshops focusing on self-care and self-development

These workshops provided a platform to emphasise self-care as an important factor in enabling
single mothers to carry out their responsibilities well.

Puan Enon Mansor
Parenting Workshop

Dee Dee Mahmood’s
Health Workshop

d)

Usaha Jaya Income Generating Project
These training sessions involved women with basic skills
training such as baking the opportunity to utilise these
skills to generate supplementary income.

Cake Decoration at Baking
Class

Support Programme for Children/Adolescents In Grief (SALAAM)
This year, Salaam has conducted the following for its participants:

a) Groupwork sessions & Concurrent Parent Sessions
Children aged 9-17 years undergo a seven sessions group
work process that enable them to voice out their worries,
concerns, confusion with regards to the changes arising
from parental loss through divorce/death. Through the
sessions, they also learn to cope with the grief and the
adjustment difficulties arising from the changes.
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Concurrently, their parents are made more aware of the impact of
the divorce/death on their children and garnering their support in
helping the children move on with their life journey.

b) Alumni activities
Past participants are involved in
activities that focus on aspects of
Moving On.

“Friends in Charity” Program

As-Salaam Family Day
PPIS As-Salaam has been organizing several family recreational events annually, especially for the
members of M.A.W.A.R Support Programme, to provide them with an opportunity to deepen and
strengthen bonds with their children. We held 2 events in conjunction with this:
The family recreational events organized in FY 2012/2013 comprised
of an Iftar event during the month of Ramadhan, a Family Day trip
to JB during the school holiday in December 2012, and a Family Day
BBQ outing @ East Coast Park in March 2013.
The M.A.W.A.R members shared their happiness for the opportunities
presented to them to bond with their children through meaningful
and fun activities. Many also shared that due to cost and time, these
activities might not have been possible for them to enjoy with their
children on their own and thus they cherish these activities that we
provide yearly for them.

Iftar @ PPIS SCC Bedok –
August 2012

The members also informed us how attending these events created a respite from their busy lives,
and they look forward always to reconnecting with fellow M.A.W.A.R members.

Family Day @ Le Grandeur,
JB – December 2012

Family Recreation @ East
Coast Park – March 2013
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3.

Public Education

Collaterals
A few collaterals were produced to further enhance our
visibility and our efforts in reaching out to more single
parent families.
New pamphlets on programs and
information brochures

Publicity Fridge Magnet

Publicity Pull-Up
Banners

			

		

Agency

MAWAR

SALAAM

Outreach Efforts
Our public education efforts through our talks to divorcing couples at Syariah Court have reached
out to 97 participants. At Family Court, we have reached out to 113 through our talks for those who
are pursuing maintenance from their ex-husband as well as those who have a maintenance case filed
against them from their ex-wife.
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4.

Staff Development

To enhance our team bonding, we had a staff
teambuilding exercise at Siti’s Delights. The exercise
included a puff making session as well as group
presentation on the final product.

Other Highlights
PCP completion (July 2011 – Nov 2012) Nuraishah Senin
was accredited as Social Worker Nuraishah by SASW.
Nooraini Mohamed Razak was awarded with the Professional & Leadership Development Scheme
(2012) by NCSS.

Moving Forward
As-Salaam will be having a Programme Retreat on 3rd October. This retreat is part of our agency’s
effort in reviewing our programmes to ensure its continued relevance and vibrancy.
As-Salaam also aspires to increase our membership number for both our children and single parent’s
support group. We are also intent on increasing our visibility in the community. We intend to do
both via increasing our publicity efforts in the media as well as through networking with the various
stakeholders in the community.
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INSPIRASI PPIS
Core Service/Programme Information
INSPIRASI provides services and programmes supporting minor couples, as well as their immediate
and extended family systems. In its work, INSPIRASI aims to strengthen minor marriages through
empowering young couples with the skills and knowledge for building healthy and stable marital
units.
INSPIRASI’s programmes and services include casework and counselling (pre-marital counselling,
family and relationship counselling etc), and programmes such as Titian Kasih – its marriage
preparation programme, Club INSPIRASI – its marriage enrichment programme, as well as its support
programmes including Public Education and the newly developed Sinar Safar programme.

Major updates/Highlights

1.

Casework and Counselling
Figure I: Output and Key Performance Indicators for INSPIRASI PPIS (FY 2012-2013)
Output Indicators

KPIs

Actual for
FY12

Pre-Marital Counselling & Marriage Preparation Course
(a)

Couples registered for pre-marital counseling

200

231

(b)

Couples attended pre-marital counseling

-

182

(c)

Couples delayed/cancelled marriage [10% of (a)]

-

26

(d)

Couples registered for marriage preparation course [50% of (a)]

100

119

(e)

Couples completed marriage preparation course [90% of (d)]

90

89

Social Assessment (Minor Couples Applying for Special Marriage Licence)
(g)

SML couples referred for social assessment

-

26

(h)

SML couples attended social assessment

-

25

(i)

SML couples delayed/cancelled marriage

-

6

(j)

SML couples registered for marriage preparation course

-

17

(k)

SML couples completed marriage preparation course

-

8

Marriage Enrichment Programme

44

(m)

Couples registered for mentoring programme (25% of [e])

23

21

(n)

Couples attended marriage enrichment programme (70% of [e])

63

109

(o)

Couples attended marriage counselling [50% of (e)]

45

202
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Figure 2: Other services or programmes provided by INSPIRASI PPIS
Services/Programmes

FY12

(a)

Casework and Counselling
(Cumulative Caseload)

36

(b)

Information & Referral

514

(c)

HOPE Mentoring
(Cumulative Caseload)

81 couples

2.

New Initiatives

Apart from the reinforcement of its core activities, FY 2012-2013 also saw INSPIRASI ushering in
new initiatives, namely the Sinar Safar programme and research work.

Sinar Safar – Journey of Light
In line with the programme’s name, Sinar Safar seeks to support HOPE recipients in their respective
journeys in bringing more “light” to their lives – be it in terms of increasing their financial
resilience, employability or being more engaged in skills upgrading opportunities. HOPE (Home
Ownership Plus Education) Scheme is a national scheme, whereby low-income families receive
education, employment and housing incentive assistances to help them gain financial resilience in
the long run.
As a start, a series of support group sessions for mothers were held in FY12. A total of 8 support
group sessions were held in the year, benefitting a total of 14 mothers. This support group aims
to provide a network of social and emotional support to its members in their roles as individuals
and within their family systems. The group started with young, non-working mothers, on the
assumption that they may be socially isolated and lack support as they carry out their different
responsibilities in the family. The group consequently expanded in its profile to include young
working mothers as its group members.
Moving forward, Sinar Safar will be concretising its structure, to incorporate elements that further
reflect the goals of the scheme. This will include elements such as parenting workshops and
skills training workshops amongst others, to further inculcate financial resilience and increase
motivation towards employment within the HOPE beneficiaries.
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Research on Resiliency of Minor Marriages
The Hub was commissioned by the Ministry of Social and Family
Development (MSF) to carry out a study with two objectives – to
review INSPIRASI’s programme and services, as well as to investigate
the resiliency of minor marriages.
Research will be an area of work which the Hub will venture into as
it strives to develop more evidence-based practices in its work with
minor marriages. Through this piece of research, INSPIRASI hopes
to further enhance its intervention framework for minor marriages.
INSPIRASI is also preparing itself to utilise the findings from the
research study to map out its Public Education efforts for upcoming
financial years. These may include publication of resource materials
useful for work with minor marriages and sharing sessions with fellow social service practitioners on
working with young couples.

3.

Re-strategising and Re-enforcing current programme
Club INSPIRASI, as one of the Hub’s core programmes has steadily
increased it programme attendance over the years. From 77 couples
in FY10, the programme’s attendance rose to 108 couples in FY12.
In FY12, the programme continued to hold its signature activity –
‘INSPIRASI Gives Back!’ as well as popular key activities such as the
Marriage Retreat. Apart from organising activities which are popular
amongst the young couples, Club INSPIRASI will continue reviewing
its client engagement strategies.

As INSPIRASI moves into its sixth year of service, it also sees couples
who have moved beyond their fifth year of marriage. To celebrate
this milestone and better support this more ‘senior’ group of couples,
Club INSPIRASI will be embarking on CI Alumni initiatives. CI Alumni
is an offshoot from Club INSPIRASI and will be focusing more on
developing and implementing activities which are more appropriate
and suited to the needs of couples who are in a more mature phase
of marriage.
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PPIS Vista Sakinah
PPIS Vista Sakinah (VS) was established to look into supporting the development of stable stepfamilies
and curbing the tide of divorces amongst remarriages. VS’ strategic thrusts are 3-fold:
Remarriage Preparation Services - To prepare remarrying couples and their children
formation of a stepfamily
Enrichment Support Services – To strengthen and build the resiliency of stepfamilies
towards sustaining their marriages.
Children’s support services – To provide support for children living in stepfamilies to
cope and adjust to their with life changes.
“Tak payah ‘I love you, you love me’, if you perangai, I lari”..and so says our client during a pre-marital
counselling session, a statement said jokingly yet, meaningfully to her future spouse to remind him
that there was no use for statements of affection, rather his actions will determine her reactions in
the marriage.
These humourous yet meaningfully deep statements are amongst some of the daily words Vista
Sakinah hears from its clients embarking on a new journey of marriage again. FY 2012-2013 marks
the second year of operation for Vista Sakinah (VS) in our journey in supporting and strengthening
stepfamilies.

1.

Outreach to the Remarrying Population – Program Memupuk Kasih

1441 remarriages were registered at the Registry of Muslim Marriages in 2012, constituting 30%
of Muslim marriages registered within the year. This was a 2% decrease from the past year and
continues the general downward trend in remarriage rates in the Malay community since 5 years
ago.
Vista Sakinah received 792 calls from remarrying couples making queries about its remarriage
preparation services. This makes up 55% (792/1441) of remarrying couples in the year. Of these,
581 couples (40%) eventually registered for the premarital counselling sessions and 374 couples
(26%) attended its remarriage preparation course, Program Memupuk Kasih. In all, Vista Sakinah
thus touched base with about 50% of the remarrying population for the year in 2012.

2.

Supporting and Strengthening Stepfamilies – Fitrah Enrichment

“Terima kasih pada PPIS VS kerana sentiasa menganjurkan program
untuk menyatukan & mengeratkan hubungan kekeluargaan &
persahabatan dengan keluarga tiri” Mdm H.
2012 also saw VS embarking on more therapeutic services to
support stepfamilies. A mothers-in-stepfamilies support group was
formed comprising of biological and stepmothers. In Dec 2012, a
father-in-stepfamily support group was also formed. The interest

Men’s support group in
progress
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garnered and the encouraging turn-out informs on the vacuum that currently exist in the therapeutic
arena. Most participants of the support group spoke about how they needed the private space in
a gathering of others like them to talk about their anxieties and struggles highlighting that private
space and time were critical amidst the hectic grinds of stepfamily life.
A variety of stepfamily enrichment modes of service delivery was also tested this year. Ranging from
couple based events that were psycho-educational in nature (eg conflict resolution workshops),
couple retreats (eg bonding over sushi making classes) and family bonding events (eg movie, Legoland
trips). Generally family recreational events seemed to gain greater popularity with stepfamilies
as it provided an alternative ‘getaway’ for the family aside from having to organise it themselves.
During such events, families were also observed to begin looking out for each other, taking care of
each other’s children as the parents were tied up, etc. Noticeable too was how the children and
teenagers from the stepfamilies bonding together and finding connectedness with each other. A
total of 252 stepfamilies benefited from the various Fitrah enrichment programmes of VS impacting
1260 persons in total.
VS also saw more cases for private consultations in 2012 with 591 info & referral calls received and
253 new cases registered for the year.

3.

Supporting Children in Stepfamilies – Bunayyah Children’s Services

Children’s services were consolidated with the drafting of a new curriculum for working with children
in stepfamilies. A 10 module curriculum was penned to be piloted in 2012. A teenage curriculum was
also planned for Keluarga Xtra – parental remarriage preparatory workshop for children. The number
of Keluarga Xtra workshop runs subsequently increased in the year to increase outreach. Children’s
programmes generally received quite good response with many parents signing their children up for
the workshops. Altogether 90 children living in stepfamilies benefited from the programmes in the
year.

4.

VS went Online!

VS went online in 2012 with the launch of
VS’ Facebook page ‘Stepfamilies Singapore’.
Past and new remarrying couples were
reconnected back to the centre and with
each other through Facebook, allowing
the formation of informal social support
systems between stepfamilies.
VS also went online with its registration
Connecting with Stepfamilies online
for Program Memupuk Kasih, allowing
interested couples to immediately register for the course without the need to come down to the
centre.
The above spells great hope for further enrichment support for stepfamilies, services that could
connect with their unique concerns as stepfamilies.
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5.

Continuing the Research Agenda

Reconnecting with couples who went through VS’ Remarriage
Preparation Course in 2009 & 2010.
VS initiated and crystallized a longitudinal research on VS’
stepfamilies in 2012 through the Keep In Touch research. This
involved contacting the remarriage preparation course participants
from 2009-2010 to find out the status of their marriage and family.
The results were notable with about 90% still intact by 2nd-3rd year
of marriage. The experience of keeping in touch helped the agency
remain connected with past participants thereby facilitating PPIS
Vista Sakinah as the ‘turn to’ resource should they need help with
their marriage.

6.

Building credibility

Although in its second year of infancy, VS immediately set about
to strengthen the publicity and credibility of the Centre so as to
establish Vista Sakinah as a household name on remarriage and
stepfamily issues in the Malay community and in the social service
sector. These efforts included:
This included collaborating with MSF to produce the drama series on
remarriages ‘Anakku Sayang’ on Suria TV and running radio capsules
on the issues on Warna 94.2 FM (Program Sulaman Keluarga).
Publishing 3 books that were distributed to the libraries, stakeholders
and social service organisations, namely ‘Remarriage in the Malay
Community’, ‘I’m Getting Married Again…Children’s Experience of
Parental Remarriage’, and ‘Keluarga Xtra : Teenage Edition’.
Paper presentation titled ‘Connecting with Fathers through
Conversations of Loss’ by Centre Manager Fazlinda Faroo at Dad’s
For Life Conference for social service practitioners on 1 Nov 2012.
Paper presentation titled ‘Keeping in Touch’: Longitudinal After
Service Follow Ups with Remarrying Couples – The PPIs Vista
Sakinah Experience’ on 25 Nov 2012 at the Community Leaders’
Forum annual seminar.

Research monographs on
Remarriage in the Malay
community.

Collaborating on the
production of MediaCorp
Channel Suria’s drama
‘Anakku Sayang’

Moving forward
Overall, VS reached out to 3734 persons living in stepfamilies in 2012. As the centre begins to form
and norm, consolidating its work and streamlining its processes, several environmental challenges
present itself that will continue to test the centre’s survival. Moving forward, Vista Sakinah will
(I) look into streamlining the referral processes from ROMM to ensure most remarrying couples
are outreached to (ii) work with pre-divorce remarriages to provide upstream work for divorcing
couples and (iii) enhance research and development on the issue of stepfamilies.
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EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION DIVISION
						

LIGHTING LITTLE LIVES
Curriculum
PPIS Early Childhood Education Division (ECE) has always impacted positively the lives of our children
since its establishment 29 years ago. Our programme capitalizes on project-based curriculum where
children become active, curious and inquisitive learners. In promoting learning of skills and concepts,
children make sense of things and people around them, investigate the world, form relationships
and engage themselves in active social interaction.
For FY 2012-2013, PPIS ECE focused on the theme ‘Our
World of Books’. The children and teachers went on a
learning journey to explore and discover about the world
around us through varied literature and print materials. This
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“Children must be taught how to
think, not what to think.”
― Margaret Mead

provided fuel for imagination and the seeds
of ideas for their project work.
Teachers
facilitated
and
provided
opportunities for children to be introduced to a
wide array of concepts, thoughts and notions.
The endless conceivable combinations and
possibilities encourage the one’s imagination
to expand widely. Equipped with drawings
and writing tools, the children planned and
made drawings, took pictures, wrote words
and labels, created graphs of things we discovered, measured and counted, and constructed models
collaboratively during the mid – year exhibition and annual project showcase.

Major updates/Highlights

1.

Collaborations

NLB Launch e-Devise Loan
Children from PPIS Bedok Reservoir were invited to the NLB in
conjunction with the launch of e-Devise for loan. Children were
reading on a handheld media player where library members
were be able to borrow devices such as iPad or Kindle which
companies have donated to Bedok Public Library. The children
were shown how they could have access to the e-book reader
which was made available for loan. This is part of the National
Library Board effort to help bridge the digital divide and make
information access more equitable.
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Cherish Junior
Cherish Junior is a health promoting framework for
preschool. It is a holistic framework adapted from the
World Health Organization Health Promoting School
Concept which advocates a learning environment that
provides children with an integrated health conscious
experience. Pa s i r R i s C e n t r e 2 p a r t i c i p a t e d and
incorporated the healthy lifestyle into the curriculum.
The children embarked on healthy eating and kept
themselves fit by going outdoor.
The event was graced by Mdm Halimah Yaacob,
Speaker of Parliament, Mr Ang Hak Seng, CEO of
Health Promotion Board and Dr Vijaya K, Director
of Health Promotion Board. Mdm Halimah Yaacob
was introduced to a lesson plan which teaches students to eat fruits and vegetables. She was also
given an opportunity to participate in a play dough session with the children. Pasir Ris Centre 2 was
facilitated by a Chef from Health Promotion Board to improvise on the ‘Gado – Gado’ which served
during the launch as a symbol of commitment from main stakeholders namely CEO, HPB, Principal,
Pre-school Health Ambassador for Nutrition and parent of student. They also sampled the healthy
set meal which was provided by centre.

2.

EDUCATION FINANCIAL AID – LIEN FOUNDATION

The Low Income Families Empowerment Fund (LIFE Fund) from LIEN Foundation has provided a
better level playing field for the needy pre-schoolers enrolled in ECE Child Development Centres. In
fiscal year 2012, LIEN Foundation underwrote more than $xxxx aided to over 456 children, all done
in good faith.

3.

LIGHTING A LEARNING LIFESTYLE

Cyclical Maintenance
PPIS Child Development Centre – Jurong saw a managerial baton
officially changed hands on 1 January 2012. With that, the centre
saw an urgent need for a more conducive environment as this can
propel forward the culture of teaching and learning. The centre
has completed the refurbishment in early February 2013 in hope
that we continue to provide better learning opportunities for both
children and teachers.
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4.

IGHTING LUMINAIRE LEADERS

Career – Professional Growth, Fostering Community & Positive Staff Recognition
Staff constitutes the arms and legs of PPIS
ECE Division. We have come thus far to
ensure that we work towards ensuring
quality teaching in our centres. Despite
the challenges to re-energise staff and
the need to continue to innovate, we
are able to attract, retain and motivate
quality teachers and staff. Outstanding
staff members are recognized for their
active contribution to the field and the
organization. Congratulations to Ms Nurul
Raudha Roslan for receiving the MCYS Child Care Award 2012. Ms Nurul Raudha Roslan has inspired
the young lives through her love, touch and care.
A series of events focused around continuous training
and learning opportunities were orchestrated
throughout the FY12-13. It facilitates in staff’s career
growth and keeps them close with the developments
within the ECE sector. Opportunities were provided
to attend seminars and workshops held externally
widens their exposure in the industry. Hence, PPIS
adopt practices that cultivate professional growth but
time away to partake in the various staff-led initiatives,
functions and social gatherings such as Teacher’s
Appreciation Day and Staff Training cum Retreat at
Universal Studios, Singapore.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet, statement of financial activities and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon are drawn up so as to exhibit a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of Persatuan Pemudi Islam Singapura (“the Association”) as at
31st March 2013, and of the financial transactions of the Association for the financial year
ended on that date.

On behalf of the Board of Management,

-------------------------------------				-----------------------------SAPIAH MOLLA
					
FARIDAH TAY
President
					
Honorary Treasurer				
		

Signed on: 27th August 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
					
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Persatuan Pemudi Islam Singapura
(“the Association”), which comprise the balance sheet of the Association as at 31st March
2013, the statement of financial activities and statement of cash flows of the Association for
the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
					
Board of Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the provisions of the Singapore
Charities Act, Chapter 37 (the “Charities Act”), the Singapore Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the
“Societies Act”) and Charities Accounting Standard (“CAS”), and devising and maintaining a
system of internal accounting control sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and
fair statement of financial activities and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.
					
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA (Cont’d)
					
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of the Association are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act and CAS so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Association as at 31st March 2013 and the results and cash flows of the
Association for the financial year then ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion,
(a)

the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be kept by the Association have been properly kept in accordance with those
regulations; and

(b)

the fund raising appeals held for the year ended 31st March 2013 have been carried
out in accordance with Regulation 6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the
Societies Act and proper accounts and other records have been kept of the fund raising
appeals.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that during the year:
a)

the Association has not comply with the requirements of Regulation 15 (Fund-raising
expenses) of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

b)

the use of donation monies was not in accordance with the objectives of the Association as required under regulation 16 of the Charities (Institution of a Public Character)
regulations.

FADHILLAH GOH & CO
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore: 27th August 2013
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2013

Note

2013
S$

Restated
2012
S$

ASSETS
NON–CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other receivables

4
5
7

849,010
117,277
11,572
977,859

1,086,978
131,937
17,572
1,236,487

6
7
8

80,117
731,668
5,665,416
6,477,201

199,419
241,570
4,831,778
5,272,767

9

1,179,322
1,179,322
5,297,879
6,275,738

1,139,790
1,139,790
4,132,977
5,369,464

2.12a
2.12b

5,042,177
1,233,561
6,275,738

3,905,011
1,464,453
5,369,464

CURRENT ASSETS
Fees receivable
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS
FUNDS
Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds
TOTAL FUNDS

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total income

Others
Membership fees
Interest income
Miscellaneous income

School fees
Zakat Commissions

Professional fees
Programme fees
Sale of workbooks
and stationeries

Income from charitable
activities

Grants and subsidies
Government Funding
MMCDF Funding
NCSS Funding

Income from activities for
generating funds
Fund-raising project

Voluntary income
Donations

INCOME

2013

910
131
11,013
12,054
367,153

6,544
6,544
3,736,135

3,367,434
3,644,874

32,402

-

11,192
294
11,486

245,038

57,008
57,008

56
56

27,653
27,653

Child
Care
Fund
S$

-

45,620
45,620

167,668
167,668

130,325
130,325

General
Fund
S$

Unrestricted
Funds

-

-

-

124
74
198
27,530

27,332

-

27,332

Designated
Project
Fund
S$

-

-

619
619
562,931

31,028

-

31,028

446,484
84,800
531,284

Inspirasi
Fund
S$

145
3,280
3,425
2,634,567

320
97,612

-

4,229
93,063

2,057,659
455,776
2,513,435

-

20,095
20,095

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
S$

700
700
654,389

487,207
496,390

685

8,498

5,467
31,800
37,267

-

120,032
120,032

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
S$

523
122
1,231
1,876
861,809

593
10,827

-

10,234

421,141
426,933
848,074

-

1,032
1,032

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
S$

-

20
20

1,426
1,426
1,118,749

118,052

-

4,000
114,052

999,251
999,251

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
S$

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA

86,296

6,685
85,296

-

78,611
-

-

-

1,000
1,000

Training
& Consultancy
Fund
S$

1,433
522
24,887
26,842
10,049,559

3,873,431
294
4,522,897

33,087

86,840
529,245

4,032,630
116,600
882,709
5,031,939

167,724
167,724

300,157
300,157

Total
S$
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Cost of charitable activities
Advertising
Amortisation of goodwill (Note 5)
Bank charges
Compensation to ex-staff
CPF - employer's
contribution
Depreciation
Doubtful debts (Note 6 and 7)
Financial assistance
and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Honorarium to trainers
Insurance
Membership fees
Miscellaneous

Cost of governance
Auditor's remuneration

Fund-raising expenses

Cost of activities for
generating funds

EXPENSES

2013

3,024
14,660
288,191
137,478
20,296
21,396
22,935

105,440
26,765
50,000
33,849
11,640
5,352
100
15,598

9,000
9,000

382
382

10,383
4,881
24,902

4,000
4,000

101,806
101,806

General
Fund
S$

Child
Care
Fund
S$

-

-

100
300
42

-

125
-

Designated
Project
Fund
S$

-

255
1,000
1,714
1,601

36,157
1,764
-

-

1,000
1,000

Inspirasi
Fund
S$

-

17,271
9,174
7,554
780
7,547

188,623
78,047
34,364

280
190
-

2,000
2,000

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
S$

-

2,027
3,055
3,107

42,028
4,995
30,716

578
-

2,000
2,000

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
S$

Unrestricted Funds

-

127
2,460
3,117
3,371

79,039
10,230
-

120
-

1,000
1,000

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
S$

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
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-

1,000
2,773
10,545

61,987
14,342
-

50,300
-

1,000
1,000

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
S$

3,900
376

1,354
1,101
-

-

-

-

Training
& Consultancy
Fund
S$

67,753
69,806
15,540
44,961
1,180
65,122

802,819
274,722
65,080

64,565
14,660
5,316
24,902

20,000
20,000

102,188
102,188

Total
S$
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Total funds at beginning of financial year
Total funds at end financial year

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total cost
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Cost of charitable activities (cont'd)
Printing, postage
and stationeries
Professional fees
Programme expenses
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

EXPENSES (CONT'D)

2013

361,366
376,793

15,427

11,536
12,103
12,103

Designated
Project
Fund
S$

474,270
632,295

158,025

2,545
86,978
96
2,217
8,448
14,269
216,280
6,551
519
540
12,402
1,949
8,621
403,906
404,906

Inspirasi
Fund
S$

2,195,692
2,833,791

638,099

10,881
243,602
4,137
4,320
21,060
56,770
1,184,060
28,345
2,312
619
48,413
14,609
31,510
1,994,468
1,996,468

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
S$

(138,726)
(2,137)

136,589

1,905
18,692
34,223
4,108
35,150
8,976
283,205
1,777
1,925
1,105
17,341
1,962
18,925
515,800
517,800

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
S$

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1,693,900
2,340,138

646,238

(1,067,204)

(2,453,942)
(3,521,146)

9,010
27,120
266,303
100,954
9,175
132,024
38,150
1,829,816
34,046
14,088
6,217
30,310
18,117
57,205
3,080,515
3,089,897

8,779
149,480
5,956
4,051
13,140
32,665
736,379
11,721
2,262
2,717
43,437
15,166
13,888
1,328,551
1,434,357

General
Fund
S$

Child
Care
Fund
S$

Unrestricted Funds

1,075,597
1,295,708

220,111

1,817
30,471
2,319
1,794
6,840
13,465
448,604
6,686
2,361
4,314
17,026
1,199
5,338
640,698
641,698

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
S$
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624,576
1,010,953

386,377

5,704
126,309
181
1,794
16,188
14,910
378,502
14,066
3,519
2,061
18,262
1,639
7,290
731,372
732,372

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
S$

72,278
75,782

3,504

2,702
48,763
2,216
1,104
584
16,312
1,155
466
1,597
1,162
82,792
82,792

Training
& Consultancy
Fund
S$

3,905,011
5,042,177

1,137,166

43,343
225,363
792,063
147,065
23,408
232,850
179,789
5,093,158
104,347
26,986
18,039
188,788
55,803
142,777
8,790,205
8,912,393

Total
S$
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Total income

Others
Interest income
Membership fees
Miscellaneous income

Income from charitable activities
Bad debts recovered
Professional fees
Programme fees
Sale of workbooks
and stationeries
School fees
Zakat Commissions

Grants and subsidies
MMCDF Funding
NCSS Funding
Government Funding

Income from activities for
generating funds
Fund-raising project

Voluntary income
Donations

INCOME

2012

21,183
21,183
3,129,853

38,110
2,815,239
3,096,739

15,646
368
24,014
1,115
348
5,241
6,704
393,879

29,850
12,103
201,437

11,831
11,831

-

100
100

8,000
-

31,479
31,479

195,008
195,008

136,674
136,674

General
Fund
Restated
S$

Child
Care
Fund
Restated
S$

155
70
225
42,717

3,259

3,259

36,686
36,686

1,000
1,000

1,547
1,547

S$

Designated
Project
Fund

(450)
605
155
457,935

28,579

28,579

47,700
8,800
372,251
428,751

-

450
450

Inspirasi
Fund
Restated
S$

680
110
790
2,002,051

3,065
12,275

8,714
496

69,106
301,290
1,606,130
1,976,526

-

12,460
12,460

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

453,913

2,214
405,804
425,182

11,126
6,038

18,720
10,000
28,720

-

11
11

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

Unrestricted Funds

S$

Training
Sponsorship Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,333
2,333

2,271
108
94
2,473
801,509

2,723

1,800
923

400,419
393,561
793,980

S$

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
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-

-

197
197
940,971

87,470

87,470

200,454
652,850
853,304

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
Restated
S$

20
20
139,408

129,388

129,388
-

-

-

10,000
10,000

S$

Training
& Consultancy
Fund

4,221
203
27,323
31,747
8,362,236

40,324
3,239,754
368
3,809,629

40,976
160,005
328,202

335,980
710,509
3,114,788
4,161,277

196,008
196,008

163,575
163,575

Total
Restated
S$
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Cost of charitable activities
Advertising
Amortisation of goodwill (Note 5)
Bad debts
Bank charges
Compensation to ex-staff
CPF - employer's
contribution
Depreciation
Doubtful debts (Note 6)
Financial assistance
and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Honorarium to trainers
Insurance
Membership fees
Miscellaneous
Printing, postage
and stationeries

Cost of governance
Auditor's remuneration

Fund-raising expenses

Cost of activities for
generating funds

EXPENSES

2012

9,965
14,660
807
251,426
164,355
8,701
840
24,272
13,028
20,562
9,346

72,554
19,498
8,114
6,236
9,831
100
6,598
14,687

8,300
8,300

-

23,485
8,262
2,365
2,400

600
600

117,470
117,470

General
Fund
Restated
S$

Child
Care
Fund
Restated
S$

-

150
-

150
150

-

-

7,305
81

S$

Designated
Project
Fund

-

1,003

2,687
970
2,323

31,197
-

457
-

800
800

Inspirasi
Fund
Restated
S$

-

15,422

20,532
7,591
4,241
140
9,439

136,153
17,323
-

422
306
-

3,000
3,000

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

-

4,513

480
2,235
2,505
4,479

35,248
4,674
12,774

1,282
-

3,000
3,000

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

Unrestricted Funds

S$

Training
Sponsorship Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

280
60
-

1,500
1,500

-

5,035

150
3,028
2,468
3,057

58,558
9,230
-

S$

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
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-

7,325

1,280
2,701
2,360
29,066

53,399
15,840
-

50,745
30
-

1,500
1,500

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
Restated
S$

150
150

-

3,934

595
8,840
770

-

-

2,700

S$

Training
& Consultancy
Fund

61,265

30,587
51,223
15,076
35,403
240
76,375

638,535
230,920
21,475

89,336
14,660
8,262
3,718
2,400

19,000
19,000

117,470
117,470

Total
Restated
S$
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Total funds at beginning of financial year
Transfer of funds
Total funds at end financial year

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total cost

Cost of charitable activities (cont'd)
Professional fees
Programme expenses
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

EXPENSES (CONT'D)

2012

(1,933,798)
20,703
(2,453,942)

(540,847)

37,527
3,125
3,912
180
13,140
22,800
498,697
5,078
1,181
1,814
27,600
13,827
13,645
816,656
934,726

General
Fund
Restated
S$

336,110
361,366

25,256

9,775
17,311
17,461

S$

Designated
Project
Fund

376,938
474,270

97,332

82,593
109
3,996
8,448
13,304
195,578
(3,972)
1,228
466
10,057
1,617
7,742
359,803
360,603

Inspirasi
Fund
Restated
S$

1,697,380
2,195,692

498,312

207,834
2,759
4,320
21,060
53,451
884,973
30,964
3,223
1,714
30,591
21,250
27,031
1,500,739
1,503,739

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

(130,174)
(138,726)

(8,552)

22,439
33,318
3,615
35,088
8,738
247,070
1,307
2,500
17,785
2,444
16,971
459,465
462,465

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$

-

-

20,703
(20,703)
-

S$

Training
Sponsorship Fund

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1,533,718
1,693,900

160,182

16,328
362,582
107,002
7,667
110,318
39,492
1,661,080
31,010
10,456
1,056
35,882
6,991
53,545
2,961,371
2,969,671

Child
Care
Fund
Restated
S$

Unrestricted Funds

848,387
1,075,597

227,210

40,022
413
1,518
6,840
16,189
391,945
7,796
4,614
800
12,927
2,064
5,805
572,799
574,299

S$

As-Salaam
Family Support Centre
Fund
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357,520
624,576

267,056

106,733
1,077
1,518
16,188
13,771
332,825
12,371
3,637
1,846
13,226
1,717
4,760
672,415
673,915

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
Restated
S$

8,672
72,278

63,606

31,690
25,177
766
612
568
75,652
75,802

S$

Training
& Consultancy
Fund

3,115,456
3,905,011

789,555

85,545
860,280
149,356
22,814
211,082
167,745
4,212,168
84,554
26,839
7,696
148,680
50,478
129,499
7,436,211
7,572,681

Total
Restated
S$

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013

Restricted Funds
Capital
Grant
Fund
S$

Clients
Assistance
Fund
S$

Building
Fund
S$

Total
S$

INCOME
Voluntary income
Donations

-

-

39,764

39,764

Fund-raising projects

-

-

189,208

189,208

Grants and subsidies
Grants

49,371

-

-

49,371

Total income

49,371

-

228,972

278,343

Fund-raising expenses

-

-

-

-

Cost of governance

-

-

-

-

Cost of charitable activities
Depreciation
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Honorarium for trainers
Miscellaneous
Programme expenses
Staff training

247,694
-

-

229,896
800
4,030
623
22,578
3,614

247,694
229,896
800
4,030
623
22,578
3,614

Total expenses

247,694

-

261,541

509,235

(32,569)

(230,892)

Income from activities for
generating funds

EXPENSES
Cost of activities for
generating funds

(DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(198,323)

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total fund at beginning
of financial year
Total fund at end financial year

544,280

278,163

642,010

1,464,453

345,957

278,163

609,441

1,233,561

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2012

Restricted Funds (Restated)
Capital
Grant
Fund
S$

Clients
Assistance
Fund
S$

Building
Fund
S$

Total
S$

INCOME
Voluntary income
Donations

-

-

110,424

110,424

Fund-raising projects

-

-

177,878

177,878

Grants and subsidies
Grants

6,651

-

-

6,651

Total income

6,651

-

288,302

294,953

Fund-raising expenses

-

-

-

-

Cost of governance

-

-

-

-

Cost of charitable activities
Depreciation
Financial assistance and subsidies
Honorarium for trainers
Programme expenses
Staff training
Transport expense

340,443
-

-

289,010
1,625
130
16,628
5,900

340,443
289,010
1,625
130
16,628
5,900

Total expenses

340,443

-

313,293

653,736

(333,792)

-

(24,991)

(358,783)

878,072

278,163

667,001

1,823,236

544,280

278,163

642,010

1,464,453

Income from activities for
generating funds

EXPENSES
Cost of activities for
generating funds

(DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total fund at beginning
of financial year
Total fund at end financial year

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
Restated
Note

2013
S$

2012
S$

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year
- Unrestricted Funds
- Restricted Funds

1,137,166
(230,892)

789,555
(358,783)

14,660
522,416

14,660
571,363

1,443,350

1,016,795

Decrease/(Increase) in fees receivable
(Increase) in other receivables
Increase in other payables

119,302
(484,098)
39,532

(105,513)
(96,036)
190,025

NET CHANGE IN WORKING CAPITAL

(325,264)

(11,524)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

1,118,086

1,005,271

-

(100,000)

(284,448)

13,935
(100,663)

(284,448)

(186,728)

833,638

818,543

4,831,778

4,013,235

5,665,416

4,831,778

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of goodwill
Depreciation charge
OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

5

CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflow for acquisition
of business
Proceeds from share of profit from
joint venture
Purchase of plant and equipment
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1

GENERAL
PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA (Registration Number: S64SS0011K) is registered as a welfare
organisation in accordance with the Societies Act, Chapter 311, and Institution of a Public Character
(IPC) under the Charities Act, Chapter 37. The Association has been accorded the status of an Institution
of Public Character (IPC) for the period from 1st July 2012 to 30th June 2014.
The registered address of the Association is at Blk. 1, Eunos Crescent, #01-2509, Singapore 400001.
The principal activities of the Association are to:
a)
Promote and cultivate educational, economic, cultural and social awareness and
interests among Muslim women in Singapore;
b)
Enhance and promote the welfare of the Muslim family; and
c)
Operate and manage early childhood education centres, social services and student care
centres.
The financial statements of the Association for the financial year ended 31st March 2013 were authorised
for issue by the Board of Management passed on the date of Statement by Board of Management.

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37 (the “Act) and Charities Accounting Standards (CAS). The accounting
policies of the Association are consistent with the requirements of the CAS and are applied consistently
to similar transactions, other events and conditions. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with CAS requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Association’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity are disclosed
in Note 3 to the financial statements.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (S$), which is also the functional currency
of the Association. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Association operates.

14
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1

Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

The financial statements are the Association’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with
CAS. The financial statements for previous financial years had been prepared in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).
The CAS issued by Accounting Standards Council (ASC) sets out the basis for preparing and presenting
financial statements for the charity sector and is applicable to financial periods beginning on or after
1st July 2011. The definitions and accounting treatments presented in the CAS are developed based
on the requirements of FRS taking into account the context and circumstances relevant to the charity
sector. The adoption of the CAS did not have any material effect on the financial performance of the
Association.

2.2

Plant and Equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, plant and
equipment and furniture and fixtures are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or production of a qualifying plant and equipment. The cost of an item of
plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Association and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Association
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis so as to write off the valuation or cost of the plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives, which are as follows: Office and kindergarten equipment		
Furniture, fittings and renovations 5 years
Air-conditioners					

3 - 5 years
5 years

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the statement
of financial activities in the financial year the asset is derecognised.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

ar|fy|12|13
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.		 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3

Financial Assets

The Association has its financial assets in the following categories: cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables in financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets
were acquired.
Trade and other receivables are presented as current assets, except those maturing later than twelve
months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets.
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) are recognised at their transaction price excluding
transaction costs, if any. Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial
activities as incurred. Prepayments are initially recognised at the amount paid in advance for the
economic resources expected to be received in the future.
After initial recognition, trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Prepayments are subsequently measured at the amount paid less the
economic resources received or consumed during the financial year.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Association has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in statement of financial
activities.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the undiscounted
future cash flows, excluding unearned interest of interest-bearing assets that the Association expects
to receive from the assets. The amount of the allowance for impairment is recognized in the statement
of financial activities.

2.4

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Association assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such
evidence exists.
An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Association will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
In the case of trade and other receivables, the amount of impairment loss is the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the undiscounted future cash flows, excluding unearned interest
of interest-bearing assets that the Association expects to receive from the assets.
The recognised impairment loss is subsequently reversed if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease is related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment is recognised. The
reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial assets, net of any allowance account
that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been
recognised. The reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of financial activities.

16
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.		 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.5

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and fixed deposits which are short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.6

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when the Association become
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Association derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the Association’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expired.

2.7

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables, including due to subsidiary but excluding accruals, are normally settled on 30
to 60 days term. These are recognised at their transaction price, excluding transaction costs, if any, both
at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure
in the statements of financial activities as incurred. Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the
amount payable.

2.8

Fund Accounting

Monies received for specific purposes, including transfers from the general fund, are credited directly
to the respective fund in the financial statements. These include restricted funds and unrestricted
funds. Restricted funds are funds held by the Association that can only be applied for specific purposes.
These funds are subject to specific trusts which may be declared by the donors or with their authority
or created through legal process but are still within the wider objects of the Association. Unrestricted
funds are expendable at the discretion of the Board in furtherance of the Association’s objects.
Designated fund is part of the unrestricted funds earmarked for a particular project. The designation is
for administrative purpose only and does not restrict the Board’s discretion to apply the fund.
Income and expenditure relating to specific funds are accounted for directly in the funds to which they
relate. Common expenses, if any, are allocated on a reasonable basis to the funds based on a method
suitable to this common expense. Assets and liabilities of the specific funds are pooled in the balance
sheet.
Funds received for specific purposes such as purchase of depreciable assets are taken to relevant
restricted fund account. This relevant fund will be reduced over the useful life of the asset in line with
its depreciation. Depreciation is charged to the relevant designated funds where the asset is held.

ar|fy|12|13
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.9

Donated Assets

These are not reflected in the financial statements due to their immateriality.

2.10 Related Parties
A related party is defined as follows:
a)

b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Association if that person:
(i)

Has control or joint control over the Association;

(ii)

Has significant influence over the Association; or

(iii)

Is a member if the key management personnel of the Association or of a parent of the
Association.

An entity is related to the Association if any of the following conditions applied:
(i)

The entity and the Association are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vi)

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

2.11 Grants and Donations
The recognition of a promised grant or donation is evidence of entitlement which normally exists when
the grant is formally expressed in writing. Where the entitlement is demonstrable, and no conditions
are attached, such promises are recognised as income once the criteria of certainty and measurability
are met. When conditions are attached, they must be fulfilled before the Association has unconditional
entitlement to the income. The income are deferred as a liability where uncertainty exists as to whether
the Association can meet the conditions and are recognised as income when there are sufficient
evidence that the conditions imposed can be met.

18
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.12 Funds
a)

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the board of management in the
furtherance of the general objectives of the Association and which have not been designated for
specific purposes.
		

General Fund
This fund is to be used for non-specific purposes at the discretion of the Board of Management
in furtherance of the Association’s objects.

Childcare Fund (Designated)
The objective of the Childcare Fund is to provide healthy foundation by nurturing the Islamic
environment that contributes to the total development of children. Its programmes concentrate
on 5 core areas of development namely, spiritual, intellectual, physical, social and emotional.

Inspirasi Fund (Designated)
This fund is designated for Inspirasi PPIS programme and activities. Inspirasi PPIS is a hub for
marriage preparation and enrichment dedicated to young couples.

Designated Project Fund (Designated)
The Designated Project Fund provides several social service programmes that aim to meet the
needs of the Malay/Muslim community and strengthen family life. This is possible through the
support of the general public, funds raised through flag-day ad other fund-raising projects in
addition to receiving grants from Ministry of Community Development, Youth and Sports (MCYS),
National Council of Social Services (NCSS), MUIS and Yayasan Mendaki.

Family Service Centre Fund (Designated)
PPIS Family Service Centre Fund provides preventive, development programmes to enable the
family to function effectively as a unit within the community. The Fund also aims to promote,
develop & maintain the well-being of family units to contribute to the progress of the community.

Student Care Centre Fund (Designated)
The Student Care Centre Fund provides supervised care for school-going children aged 7-14
years old. The programme aims to alleviate the problems faced by latch key children. It offers a
structures curriculum that emphasise wholesome care as well as enhancement of the children’s
development in all aspects. Children of low-income families are assisted with fee subsidies.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.12
a)

Funds (cont’d)
Unrestricted Funds (cont’d)
Training & Consultancy Fund (Designated)
The Training and Consultancy Unit began operations in October 2010. It serves as a platform
to provide impactful training and consultancy work for professionals to develop cross-cultural
competency as well as for members of the Muslim community to be aware and skilled in dealing
with individual, family and social issues.

As-Salaam Family Support Centre Fund (Designated)
The As-Salaam Family Support Centre provides support programmes for single parents and
children particularly those from the lower socio-economic background to cope and overcome
challenges, to rebuild their family life and attain salaam or peace in their journey of life.

Vista Sakinah Fund
The Vistah Sakinah provides a comprehensive service to Malay/Muslim remarrying couples and
stepfamilies. As a pilot project under As-Salaam PPIS Family Support Centre and funded by the
Voluntary Capability Fund of the National Council of Social Services in 2005, the programme
grew into a full scale service supported by the Ministry of Community Development Youth and
Sports and the Community Leaders’ Forum.

b)

Restricted Funds
Restricted Funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restriction imposed
by the fund providers.

Building Fund
The Building Fund is established from donations received from donors who have specified that
these donations are to be used for the setting up of the Association’s building in the future.

Clients Assistance Fund
Clients Assistance Fund comprises of the following funds:

20

i)

Lien Foundation Fund pertains to the amount donated by the foundation to the Association for
the purpose of implementing a preschool education programme for low-income families.

ii)

The Foundation Schemes were set up to provide financial assistance to existing financial aid
clients (Foundation - FSC) and to SCC students in their monthly programmes fees (Foundation SCC). Receipts comprise donations from foundations.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.12 Funds (cont’d)
b)

Restricted Funds (cont’d)
Clients Assistance Fund (cont’d)
iii)

Zakat received is used to provide financial assistance to existing financial aid clients
who are in debt but needs assistance to meet his/ her basic needs such as utility bills,
conservancy charges as well as housing. Receipts comprise from individuals.

Capital Grant Fund
Assets related grants or donations are recognised in the statement of financial activities as
received. The restricted fund will then be reduced over the useful life of the asset in line with its
depreciation.

2.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Association and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Cash donations which are still in collection containers at public and other premises or are in
transit to the Association are not recognised as income until they have been received by the
Association. Donations are recognised on a receipt basis. No value is ascribed to volunteer
services, donated services, assets donated for continuing use or similar donations-in-kind,
unless the benefit to the Association is reasonably quantifiable and measurable in which case an
equivalent amount is recorded in expenditure, or capitalised as appropriate.
Donations-in-kind received for continuing use are capitalised and included in the balance sheet
at a reasonable estimate or in the event that it is not practicable to do so, a nominal value of S$1
is assigned to capitalise the useable assets.
Items received which are donated for resale, distribution or consumption are not recorded when
received as it is usually not practical to asce1tain the value of the items involved.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Allocation of zakat and income from fund-raising projects are taken up in the financial statements
as income on receipt basis. Grants and subsidies are taken up in the financial statements as
income on accrual basis.
The Association drives a substantial proportion of its income from voluntary donations. Because
of the nature of these donations, the Association cannot provide accounting controls over
contributions prior to the initial entry in the accounting records.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.14 Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accrual basis and has been classified under headings that
aggregate all costs related to that activity.

Cost of Generating Funds
The cost of generating funds are those costs attributable to generating income for the
Association, other than those costs incurred in undertaking charitable activities in furtherance
of the Association’s objects.

Charitable Activities
Expenditure on charitable activities comprises all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable
objects of the Association. Those costs, where not wholly attributable, are apportioned
between the categories of charitable expenditure. The total costs of each category of charitable
expenditure therefore include an apportionment of support cost, where possible.

Governance Costs
Governance costs include the costs of governance arrangements, which relate to the general
running of the Association as opposed to the direct management functions inherent in generating
funds, service delivery and programme or project work. Expenditure on the governance of the
charity will normally include both direct and related support costs which include internal and
external audit, apportioned manpower costs and general costs in supporting the governance
activities, legal advice for governing board members, and costs associated with constitutional
and statutory requirements.

Other Expenditure
Other expenditure includes the payment of any expenditure that the Association has not been
able to analyse within the main expenditure categories.

2.15 Employee Benefits - Defined Contribution Plans
The Association makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore,
defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes
are recognised as an expense in the period which the related service is performed.

2.16 Operating Lease – As Lessee

22

Leases of assets in which a significant pm1ion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are taken
to the statement of financial activities on a straight-line basis over the year of the lease. When
an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the year in which
termination takes place.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.17 Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination as an asset. Initially measure that goodwill at its
cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
After initial recognition, goodwill shall be measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.
The depreciable amount of goodwill amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of 10
years.
Amortisation begins when the intangible asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Amortisation ceases when the intangible asset is derecognised.
The residual value of goodwill shall be assumed to be zero unless:
a.

There is a commitment by a third party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life;
or

b.

There is an active market for the asset and:
i.
Residual value can be determined by reference to that market; and
ii.
It is probable that such a market will exist at the end of the asset’s useful life.

The useful lives, amortisation method and residual value shall be reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and revised if necessary, subject to the constraint that the revised useful life
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of acquisition.
When a previously acquired business is disposed, the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
that business at the date of disposal shall be included in determining the gain or loss on disposal,
except that goodwill recognised previously as a deduction from funds shall not be recognised in
gain or loss on disposal.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS
Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
The Association makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. There are no critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that would affect the application of accounting policies and amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosures made.
The critical judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Critical Judgments Made in Applying Accounting Policies
Useful Lives of Plant and Equipment
The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.
Management estimates the useful lives if these plant and equipment to be 3 to 5 years. These are
common life expectancies applied in the operations of the Association.
The carrying amount of the Association’s plant and equipment at 31st March 2013 was S$ 849,010.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic
useful lives and residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.
The accounting policies used by the Association have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements.

Impairment of Loans and Receivables
The Association assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the
Association considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The
carrying amount of the Association’s loans and receivables at the balance sheet date is disclosed in
Note 6 and 7 to the financial statements.

24
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

4.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

					
Office & 		
					
Kindergarten		
					Equipment		
					
S$			

Furniture,
fittings &		
renovations		
S$			

Air
Conditioners
S$			

Total
S$

COST
At 01.04.2011		
Additions			

365,537		
44,435		

3,793,781		
50,336		

16,420		
7,820		

4,175,738
102,591

At 31.03.2012 and
01.04.2012			

409,972		

3,844,117		

24,240		

4,278,329

Additions 			
106,047		
165,870		
12,530		
284,447
					-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------At 31.03.2013		
516,019		
4,009,987		
36,770		
4,562,776
					
=======================================================

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 01.04.2011		
225,333		
2,378,235		
16,420 		
2,619,988
Depreciation charge
75,553		
494,246		
1,564		
571,363
					----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------At 31.03.2012 and
and 01.04.2012		
300,886		
2,872,481		
17,984		
3,191,351
Depreciation charge
93,541		
424,804		
4,070		
522,415
					----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------At 31.03.2013		
394,427		
3,297,285		
22,054		
3,713,766
					
=======================================================

NET CARRYING VALUE
At 31.03.2013		
					
At 31.03.2012		
					

5

GOODWILL

121,592		
712,702		
14,716		
849,010
=======================================================
109,086		
971,636		
6,256		
1,086,978
=======================================================

														
											 2013		
											
S$			
Goodwill arising from acquisition					
146,597		

Restated
2012
S$
146,597

Less: Accumulated amortization					
(29,320)		
(14,660)
											 -------------------------------------											
117,277		
131,937
											
========================
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – 31ST MARCH 2013

6

FEES RECEIVABLE

											 2013		
											
S$			

2012
S$

Fees receivable								
160,785		
Less: Provision for impairment						
(80,668)		
											 --------------					 80,117		
											
==========

249,371
(49,952)
--------------199,419
==========

Movements on provision for impairment:
Beginning of financial year						
49,952		
Provision for the financial year						
30,716		
Written-off									
-			
											 --------------							
80,668		
											
==========

53,777
21,475
(25,300)
--------------49,952
==========

Fees receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to debtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
The Association has fees receivables amounting to S$ 22,849 (2012: S$ 51,914) that are past due (more
than 90 days) at end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured.

7

        

OTHER RECEIVABLES

								
								

2013		
S$		

2012
S$

Current
Receivable from a contractor for
double payment made							
57,154		
Less: Provision for impairment						
(38,102)		
											 ---------------											
19,052		
Subsidy receivable								
1,500		
Grant receivable								
400,955		
Other debtors								
6,361		
Prepayments									
7,469		
Deposit paid for purchase of a
new freehold property							
246,794		
Deposits									
49,537		
											 ---------------											
731,668		
											
==========

57,154
----------------57,154
750
51,802
12,772
17,093
54,595
47,404
----------------241,570
==========

Non-current
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Staff loan									
11,572		
											 ---------------											
11,572		
											 ---------------											
743,240		
											
==========
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==========

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

7

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

After the year end, the Association has received from the contractor 6 equal instalments post-dated cheques
for repayment of the double payment. The 2nd instalment cheque was dishonoured but subsequently a
replacement cheque was issued and cleared. In view of the dishonoured cheque, a provision for impairment
for the balance amount owed has now been made.
The staff loan is given for the purpose of financing part of the school fees of the staff’s children. The loan is
interest free and unsecured. The repayment period is from July 2013 to March 2016 and the loan repayment is
by monthly salary deduction. During the year, the Association had received study grants from an organisation
and there were used to offset the loan.

8

        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

									 2013		
									 S$		

Cash in hand										 14,688		
Cash at bank										 5,545,423
Fixed deposits									 105,305
												
---------------												 5,665,416
												 ==========

9

OTHER PAYABLES

2012
S$
15,046
4,560,667
256,065
----------------4,831,778
==========

												
2013		
												 S$		

2012
S$

Provision for bonus/Habuan Ramadhan					 609,412
Accruals										 290,638
Deposits received									 176,781
Advanced fees									 -		
GST Payable										 76,891		
Capital Assistance Scheme							 16,429		
School Pocket Money Fund							 9,171
Grant received in advance							 -		
											 ---------------												 1,179,322
											
==========

387,648
348,588
139,090
79,745
67,104
16,429
24,075
77,111
----------------1,139,790
==========

10

TAXATION
The Association is an approved charitable organisation under the Charities Act, Cap 37 and an Institution
of a Public Character under the Income Tax Act, Cap 134.
No provision for income tax is made in the financial statements as the Association, being a charity, is
exempted from income tax.

ar|fy|12|13
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For the purpose of financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Association if the
Association has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Association and
the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals or other entities.
A related party includes the board members and key management personnel of the Association. It also
includes an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common or
joint control with these persons. It also includes close members of the family of any individuals referred
to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence by or for
which significant voting power in such entity resides with directly or indirectly, any such individual. Key
management personnel include the CEO, managers and key executives.
It is not the normal practice for the board members, or people connected with them, to receive
remuneration, or other benefits, from the Association for which they are responsible, or from institutions
connected with the Association.

Key management’s remuneration
The key management’s remuneration are as follows:
												
2013		
												 S$		

2012
S$

Salaries and related costs paid to CEO,
Managers and key executives							 924,169
												 =========

752,089
=========

The number of employees (including the key management personnel) whose remuneration amount is
over S$ 50,000 in the financial year is as follows:

Number of Employees in Bands
S$ 50,000 to S$100,000								 8		
S$ 100,001 to S$ 150,000								 3		
												 =========

10
1
=========

The Association’s board members were not paid any remuneration during the financial year (2012: nil).
All board members and staff of the Association are required to read and understand the conflict of
interest policy in place and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holdings that could
potentially result in conflict of interests. When conflict of interest situation arises, the members or staff
shall abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making and voting on the matters.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

12. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial
statements is as follows:
											 2013		
											
S$			

2012
S$

Capital commitment in respect of purchase
of a freehold property							
											

730,355
=========

538,156		
=========

Operating Lease Commitments – As Lessee
Future minimum rental payable under operating lease at the balance sheet date is as follows:
Payable with one year							
67,221		
											 -------------											
67,221		
											
=========

60,822
-------------60,822
=========

Operating lease payments recognised in the statement of financial activities during the financial year
amounting to S$ 232,850 (2012: S$ 211,081).

13. RESERVE POLICY
The Board Members has established a reserve policy for the Association, pursuant to the Code of
Governance for Charities and IPCs Guidelines 6.4.1. The reserve measurements are calculated as
follows:											
											Restated
									2013		
2012
									
S$		
S$
Unrestricted funds							

5,042,177

3,905,011

Net liquid assets available to meet expenditure
Obligation								

6,173,401

5,153,675

8,912,393
==========

7,572,681
==========

0.69		
=========

0.68
=========

Total operating expenditure					
									
Ratio of net liquid assets to total
operating expenses							
									

The Association does not have any externally imposed capital requirements for the financial years
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. There were no changes in the Association’s reserve policy during the
financial year.
ar|fy|12|13
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

14. TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS
Tax exempt receipts have been issued by the Association and its activity centres during the financial
year for the donations received amounting to S$ 258,771 (2012: S$ 239,643).

15

COMPARATIVE FIGURES AND ADJUSTMENTS
With the adoption of CAS, certain adjustments and reclassifications have been made to the Association’s prior year’s financial statements to enhance comparability with the current year’s financial
statements. As a result, certain line items have been amended on the face of Statement of Financial
Activities and Balance Sheet of the Association as summarized below:

					Balance as at
2012					
1 April 2011		
					
S$			
Balance sheet

Addition/		
(Depreciation)/
Income		 (Amortisation)
S$			
S$			

Balance as at
31 March 2012
S$

Goodwill
- As previously
reported				
					

-			
=========		

146,597		
=========		

-			
==========

146,597
=========

- As restated				
					

-			
=========		

146,597		
========		

(14,660)		
==========

131,937
=========

- As previously reported		
					

878,072		
=========		

6,651			
========		

(340,443)		
==========

544,280
=========

- As restated				
					

-			
=========		

-			
========		

-			
==========

=========

- As previously reported		
					

-			
=========		

-			
========		

-			
==========

=========

- As restated				
					

878,072		
=========		

6,651			
========		

(340,443)		
==========

544,280
=========

Deferred capital grants

Capital grant fund
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES AND ADJUSTMENTS (Cont’d)

							 As previously
2012		
					 reported		
							
S$			

Adjustments/
Reclassification		
S$				

Restated
S$

11,688			
(14,660)			
(11,688)			
===========		

(2,453,942)
1,693,900
474,270
===========

(Decrease)/
Increase			
S$				

Restated
S$

Balance sheet
Funds
General fund					
Childcare fund					
Inspirasi fund					
							

(2,465,630)		
1,708,560		
485,958		
===========

							 As previously
2012 						 reported		
							
S$			

Statement of financial activities
Capital grant fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- (Deficit)						
							

-			
6,651				
-			
(340,443)		
----------------		----------------		
-			
(333,792)		
===========
===========		

6,651
(340,443)
----------------(333,792)
===========

3,236,437		
(106,584)		
(3,061,595)		
106,584			
----------------		----------------		
174,842		
-				
===========
===========		

3,129,853
(2,955,011)
----------------174,842
===========

497,627		
(39,692)			
(388,607)		
28,004			
----------------		----------------		
109,020		
(11,688)			
===========
===========		

457,935
(360,603)
----------------97,332
===========

2,141,942		
(139,891)		
(1,643,630)		
139,891			
----------------		----------------		
498,312		
-				
===========
===========		

2,002,051
(1,503,739)
----------------498,312
===========

Childcare fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- Surplus						
							

Inspirasi fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- Surplus						
							

Family service centre fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- Surplus						
							

ar|fy|12|13

31

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31ST MARCH 2013

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES AND ADJUSTMENTS (Cont’d)
							 As previously
2012							
reported		
							
S$			

(Decrease)/
Increase		
S$			

Restated
S$

Statement of financial activities (cont’d)
Student care centre fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- (Deficit)						
							

478,789		
(24,876)		
(487,341)		
24,876		
----------------		---------------(8,552)		
-			
===========
===========

453,913
(462,465)
----------------(8,552)
===========

- Income
					
- Expenses						
							
- Surplus						
							

970,371		
(29,400)		
(703,315)		
29,400		
----------------		---------------267,056		
-			
===========
===========

940,971
(673,915)
----------------267,056
===========

General fund
- Income						
- Expenses						
							
- (Deficit)						
							

276,409		
117,470		
(828,944)		
(105,782)
----------------		---------------(552,535)		
11,688		
===========
===========

393,879
(934,726)
----------------(540,847)
===========

Vista Sakinah fund

Previously, grants received for the purpose of depreciable assets were taken to deferred capital grant accounts.
The deferred grants were amortised and recognised as income in the statement of financial activities over
the years necessary to match the depreciation of plant and equipment to which the grants relate. With the
adoption of CAS, the Association recognised the grants as income in the statement of financial activities as
received. The relevant restricted capital grant fund will then be reduced over the useful life of the asset in
line with its depreciation.
Previously, goodwill stated at cost, was reviewed for impairment and not amortised. With the adoption
of CAS, goodwill is now stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Goodwill is no longer required to be
assessed for impairment under the CAS.

32

ar|fy|12|13

ar|fy|12|13

33

(1,660,254)
(1,618,636)

230,889
230,889

267,121
(1,696,486)
(1,429,365)

30,046
11,572
41,618

General
Fund
S$

Unrestricted
Funds

929,345
1,542,167

453,999
453,999

11,499
40,177
1,331,668
1,383,344

495,545
117,277
612,822

Child
Care
Fund
S$
-

376,792
376,792

-

376,792
376,792

Designated
Project
Fund
S$

486,601
487,985

36,024
36,024

160,180
362,445
522,625

1,384
1,384

Inspirasi
Fund
S$
51,345
51,345

Student
Care
Centre
Fund
S$

2,390,963
2,564,215

223,272
223,272

(92,970)
(41,625)

55,611
55,611

51,284
31,752 160,770
2,582,483 (249,413)
2,614,235 (37,359)

173,252
173,252

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
S$

-

-

-

-

1,103,096
1,118,328

109,045
109,045

1,212,141
1,212,141

15,232
15,232

As-Salaam
Training
Family
SponsorSupport
ship Fund Centre Fund
S$
S$

803,534
883,128

62,913
62,913

71,307
795,140
866,447

79,594
79,594

Vista
Sakinah
Fund
S$

73,168
75,780

7,569
7,569

17,334
361
63,042
80,737

2,612
2,612

Training
& Consultancy
Fund
S$

-

278,163
278,163

-

278,163
278,163

Building
Fund
S$

Restricted
Funds

The balance sheet - by funds does not form part of the audited financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.

NET CURRENT ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Other payables

CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT ASSETS
Fees receivables
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other receivables

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2013

BALANCE SHEET - BY FUNDS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2013

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA

849,010
117,277
11,572
977,859

Total
S$

609,441 5,297,879
609,441 6,275,738

- 1,179,322
- 1,179,322

80,117
731,668
609,441 5,665,416
609,441 6,477,201

-

Clients
Assistance
Fund
S$
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(1,409,910)
(1,356,431)

156,179
156,179

65,342
(1,319,073)
(1,253,731)

35,907
17,572
53,479

S$

General
Fund

Unrestricted
Funds

698,259
1,357,891

487,909
487,909

127,418
47,167
1,011,583
1,186,168

527,695
131,937
659,632

Child
Care
Fund
Restated
S$
-

361,365
361,365

823
823

362,188
362,188

S$

Designated
Project
Fund

386,810
389,958

34,876
34,876

792
420,894
421,686

3,148
3,148

S$

Inspirasi
Fund

71,537
71,537

45,738
45,738

1,858,817 (194,917)
2,163,241 (123,380)

170,807
170,807

-

-

-

-

952,474
973,406

87,646
87,646

1,122
1,038,998
1,040,120

20,932
20,932

487,628
610,963

131,260
131,260

4,452
614,436
618,888

123,335
123,335

Student
As-Salaam
Care
Training
Family
Vista
Centre
SponsorSupport
Sakinah
Fund
ship Fund Centre Fund
Fund
Restated
Restated
S$
S$
S$
S$

44,712
121,007
1,688
1,908,617 (195,579)
2,029,624 (149,179)

304,424
304,424

Family
Service
Centre
Fund
Restated
S$
-

72,278
72,278

10,605
10,605

27,289
55,594
82,883

S$

Training
& Consultancy
Fund

-

278,163
278,163

-

278,163
278,163

S$

Building
Fund

Restricted
Funds

The balance sheet - by funds does not form part of the audited financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.

NET CURRENT ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Other payables

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Fees receivables
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment
Goodwill (Restated)
Other receivables

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2012

BALANCE SHEET - BY FUNDS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2013

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA

- 1,086,978
131,937
17,572
- 1,236,487

S$

Total

642,010 4,132,977
642,010 5,369,464

13,947 1,139,790
13,947 1,139,790

199,419
241,570
655,957 4,831,778
655,957 5,272,767

S$

Clients
Assistance
Fund

PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
CHILDCARE CENTRE FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

INCOME
Bad debts recovered
Donations
Fundraising project
Government funding
Investment Income
Miscellaneous income
Professional fees
Programme fees
Sales of workbooks and stationeries
School fees

Restated
2012
S$

27,653
(326)
57,008
6,544
245,038
32,402
3,367,434
3,735,753

29,850
100
11,831
21,183
12,103
201,437
38,110
2,815,239
3,129,853

3,024
14,660
9,000
288,191
137,478
20,296
21,396
385,000
22,935
9,010
27,120
266,303
100,954
9,175
132,024
38,150
1,829,816
34,046
14,088
6,217
30,310
18,117
57,205
(3,474,515)
261,238

9,965
14,660
8,300
807
251,426
164,355
8,701
840
24,272
13,028
265,700
20,562
9,346
16,328
362,582
107,002
7,667
110,318
39,492
1,661,080
31,010
10,456
1,056
35,882
6,991
53,545
(3,235,371)
(105,518)

LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Amortisation of goodwill
Auditors' remuneration
Bank charges
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Doubtful debts
Financial assistance
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Membership fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Professional fees
Programme expenses
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 385,000 (2012: S$ 265,700) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
ar|fy|12|13
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
INSPIRASI FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

Restated
2012
S$

446,484
619
84,800
31,028
562,931

450
372,251
(450)
605
47,700
8,800
28,579
457,935

1,000
36,157
1,764
255
1,000
1,714
60,000
1,601
2,545
86,978
96
2,217
8,448
14,269
216,280
6,551
519
540
12,402
1,949
8,621
(464,906)
98,025

457
800
31,197
2,687
970
48,000
2,323
1,003
82,593
109
3,996
8,448
13,304
195,578
(3,972)
1,228
466
10,057
1,617
7,742
(408,603)
49,332

INCOME
Donations
Government funding
Membership fees
Miscellaneous income
MMCDF Funding
NCSS funding
Professional fees
Programme fees
LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditor's remuneration
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Programme expense
Refreshments
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment and training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 60,000 (2012: S$ 48,000) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
FAMILY SERVICE CENTRE FUND
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
201300
S$000

Restated
2012
S$

20,095
2,057,659
145
3,280
455,776
4,229
93,063
320
2,634,567

12,460
1,606,130
680
110
69,106
301,290
8,714
496
3,065
2,002,051

280
2,000
190
188,623
78,047
34,364
17,271
9,174
7,554
170,000
780
7,547
10,881
243,602
4,137
4,320
21,060
56,770
1,184,060
28345
2,312
619
48,413
14,609
31,510
(2,166,468)
468,099

422
3,000
306
136,153
17,323
20,532
7,591
4,241
120,500
140
9,439
15,422
207,834
2,759
4,320
21,060
53,451
884,973
30,964
3,223
1,714
30,591
21,250
27,031
(1,624,239)
377,812

INCOME
Donations
Government funding
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
MMCDF Funding
NCSS funding
Professional fees
Programme fees
School fees
LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditor's remuneration
Bank charges
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Doubtful debts (Note 7)
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Membership fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Programme expenses
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 170,000 (2012: S$ 120,500) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
STUDENT CARE CENTRE FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

Restated
2012
S$

120,032
5,467
700
31,800
8,498
685
487,207
654,389

11,126
11
10,000
18,720
6,038
2,214
405,804
453,913

578
2,000
42,028
4,995
30,716
2,027
3,055
30,000
3,107
1,905
18,692
34,223
4,108
35,150
8,976
283,205
1,777
1,925
1,105
17,341
1,962
18,925
(547,800)
106,589

1,282
3,000
35,248
29,550
12,774
480
2,235
2,505
25,000
4,479
4,513
22,439
33,318
3,615
35,088
8,738
247,070
1,307
2,500
17,785
2,444
16,971
(512,341)
(58,428)

INCOME
Bad debts recovered
Donations
Government funding
Miscellaneous income
MMCDF Funding
Programme fees
Sales of workbooks and stationeries
School fees

LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditor's remuneration
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Doubtful debts
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Programme expenses
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 30,000 (2012: S$ 25,000) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
AS-SALAAM FAMILY SUPPORT CENTRE FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

2012
S$

1,032
421,141
122
523
1,231
426,933
10,234
593
861,809

2,333
393,561
2,271
108
94
400,419
1,800
923
801,509

1,000
120
79,039
10,230
127
2,460
3,117
75,000
3,371
1,817
30,471
2,319
1,794
6,840
13,465
448,604
6,686
2,361
4,314
17,026
1,199
5,338
(716,698)
145,111

280
1,500
60
58,558
9,230
150
3,028
2,468
54,000
3,057
5,035
40,022
413
1,518
6,840
16,189
391,945
7,796
4,614
800
12,927
2,064
5,805
(628,299)
173,210

INCOME
Donations
Government funding
Interest income
Membership fees
Miscellaneous income
NCSS funding
Professional fees
Programme fees
School fees

LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditor's remuneration
Bank charges
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Programme expense
Refreshment
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 75,000 (2012: S$ 54,000) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
VISTA SAKINAH FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

Restated
2012
S$

INCOME
Donations
Government funding
Miscellaneous income
Membership fees
MMCDF Funding
Professional fees
Programme fees

20
999,251
1,426
4,000
114,052
1,118,749

652,850

50,300
1,000
61,987
14,342
1,000
2,773
85,000
10,545
5,704
126,309
181
1,794
16,188
14,910
378,502
14,066
3,519
2,061
18,262
1,639
7,290
(817,372)
301,377

50,745
1,500
30
53,399
45,240
1,280
2,701
2,360
54,000
29,066
7,325
106,733
1,077
1,518
16,188
13,771
332,825
12,371
3,637
1,846
13,226
1,717
4,760
(757,315)
183,656

197
200,454
87,470
940,971

LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditor's remuneration
Bank charges
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Financial assistance and subsidies
Functions and meetings
Insurance
Management fees
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Programme expense
Refreshments
Rental of equipment
Rental of premises
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Staff welfare
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses
Utilities

SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Additional information:
Expense include management fee paid to the general fund amounting to S$ 85,000 (2012: S$ 54,000) which was
eliminated in the Group's Income Statement.
The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
TRAINING & CONSULTANCY FUND

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013
2013
S$

2012
S$

1,000
78,611
6,685

10,000
20
129,388
-

86,296

139,408

1,354
1,101
3,900
376
2,702
48,763
2,216
1,104
584
16,312
1,155
466
1,597
1,162
(82,792)
3,504

2,700
150

INCOME
Donations
Miscellaneous income
NCSS Funding
Professional fees
School fees

LESS: EXPENSES
Advertising
Auditors' remuneration
CPF - employer's contribution
Depreciation
Functions and meetings
Honoriarium
Miscellaneous expense
Printing, postage and stationeries
Professional fees
Programme expense
Refreshments
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and bonuses
Staff recruitment & training
Supplies and materials
Telephone and facsimile
Transport expenses

SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

595
8,840
770
3,934
31,690
25,177
766
612
568
(75,802)
63,606

The detailed income statement does not form part of the audited
financial statements and therefore it is not covered in the auditors' report.
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
CENTRES
Details of the centres of the Association are as follows:

42

Name of Centres

Principal of Activities

Location

As-Salaam PPIS Family
Support Centre

Provision of support programmes for single
parents and children particularly those from
the lower socio-economic.

Blk 322 Ubi Avenue 1
#01-591
Singapore 400322

PPIS Family Service
Centre (West)

Provision of preventive, development and
remedial programmes to enable the family
to function effectively as a unit within the
community.

Blk 301 Bukit
Batok St 31 #01-01
Singapore 650301

PPIS Family Service
Centre (East)

Provision of preventive, development and
remedial programmes to enable the family
to function effectively as a unit within the
community.

Blk 41 Chai Chee St
#01-16
Singapore 461041

PPIS Student Care
Centre (Bedok)

Provision of supervised care for school-going
children aged 7-14 years old.

Blk 136 Bedok
Reservoir Road
#01-1425
Singapore 470136

PPIS Student Care
Centre (Jurong)

Provision for supervised care for school-going
children aged 7-14 years old.

Blk 520 Jurong
West St 52 #01-195
Singapore 640520

PPIS Child
Development Centre
Bukit Batok

Provision of childcare centre services

21 Bukit Batok East
Avenue 6
Singapore 659759

PPIS Child
Development Centre Pasir Ris 1

Provision of childcare centre services

Blk 557 Pasir Ris
St 51 #01-201
Singapore 510557

PPIS Child
Development Centre Pasir Ris 2

Provision of childcare centre services

Blk 187 Pasir Ris St 11
#01-88
Singapore 510187

PPIS Child
Development Centre Bedok Reservoir

Provision of childcare centre services

Blk 709 Bedok
Reservoir Road
#01-3854
Singapore 470709
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PERSATUAN PEMUDI ISLAM SINGAPURA
CENTRES (CONT'D)
Details of the centres of the Association are as follows:
Name of Centres

Principal of Activities

Location

PPIS Child
Development
Centre Sembawang

Provision of childcare centre services

Blk 316 Sembawang
Vista #01-191
Singapore 750316

PPIS Child
Development
Centre - Jurong

Provision of childcare centre services

Blk 826 Jurong West
St. 81 #01-430
Singapore 640826

PPIS Inspirasi

Provision for marriage preparation and enrichment
dedicated to young couples

Blk 322 Bukit Batok
St 33 #01-16
Singapore 650322

PPIS Vista Sakinah

Provision for counselling services, marriage
preparation programme, workshops and parents
support group dedicated to remarrying couples and
stepfamiles.

Blk 549 Woodlands
Dr 44 #01-86,
Singapore 730549
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